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January 31,2019

Honorable President and
Members ofthe Board of Education
Lower Township School District
County of Cape May ,

Cape May, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Lower Township School
Disfric.t for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and beliet
the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is presented in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and
account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the Disfict's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The organizational chart and a list of principal officials.
The financial schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The
District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Title 2 U.S. Code of federal regulations, cost principles, and audit requirements for federal
awards (uniform guidance); and State of New Jersey Circular OMB15-08. Information related to
this single audi! including the auditor's report on compliance and internal control with applicable
laws and regulations and findings and recommendations are included in the single audit section of
this report.

Eveny SruoQrr, Eveny Dny

Leeruruc InacrnNc ExnroruNc Succnpowc



.I. RE.PORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Township of Lower School District is an independent reporting entity wittrin the
criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. t+. AII Iirnds and
agryynt {oups 9f the District are included in dris report. The Township of Lower Board
oJEducation and all its schools oonstitute the Distict's reporting entity.

Jhe pislricl proyides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
fre.sgttoo] ftouStt.6. Tlrese include regular oduoation, acadernic-enrichmeit programs
and Speoial &lucation instruction anA C[itd Study Team service,s. The District cffi*ed
fite 2afi-2018 fiscal year with an enrotlmeni of 1,65T students.(June zott;. rhe
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the Disrici over the last ten
yeafs.

Fiseal Year

20t7-t8
2016-17
2015-l:.6
2At+15
2A$-14
2012-13

20lL-12
20t0-r I
2009-10

2008.09

Pefcentl$hanse

-0.l.4%
-3.42%
:i.520/o

4.08%
0,82oft

4.93%
-1.08%

-r.96Ya

tsl%
t.6s%

AVERAGE STTIDENT EI{ROLLMENT
AS REPORITI} TO TIID STATE

AJLerqgc l)Aily E nrof lme nt

1,6 7
1,666
1,725
l,7gg
1,826
l,gl I
l,g2g
1,848

1,885

1,857

2. ECONOMIC COF{DITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Township of Lower encompasses 30.5 square miles in the southorn part of Cape May
County. Its boundaries include the Delaware Bay, the .A,tlantic ocean, cape May Cigl
Cape May Poin! Wildwood Crest, and ttre Townsirip of Middle. The area was purchased
from the original settlers, tlre Kechemeche Indians, in the early 1600's. It was a natural
site and became a center for wheling, fishing and fur trading.

The township was formed as a precinc-t in 1723 and was incorporated on February 21,
1798. From its incorporation until July t, 1984, three members formed a township
oommiftee that governed the Township. Since July 1984, the governing body consists of
a mayor, elected by the people, and four souncil members (ttree elected from wards and
one atJarge) In addition, a township manager, since 1984 supervises all deparknents
and is responsible for the preparation and adrninistration of the annual budget

3
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3. MAJOR INITIATTVEST

During the}An-2018 school year major iniriatives included:

IltPlementation of grade K-5 New Jersey Student Learning Standards- Science
aligned Knowing Science curriculum.

lrades {-5 prepared for tbe roll-out of the New Jersey Student Learning Standards-
Science for tho 2017:2018 schoo! year. Grade level committees wrote the cuniculum
and pacing guides throughout the school year.
Universal Design for learning professional development was facilitated to ensura that
all students have access to grade tevel cuniculum.
Ths district invested in a behaviorat intervention training for teachers in preschool-
grude2.
K-6 professional development was offered during the summer to provide furtfter
support in our writing program.
The disaict purchased subscriptions to Moby M4x, an online suite of educational
resources for Maud Abrams and Sandman school. Splash math was piloted at the
Mirnick School
Gradesl I and 2 continued a morning tutoring program for reading and mailr at the
Mitnick School. Grades 3 and 4 provided an-after school reading and mxh tutoring
program at the Maud Abrams School. Title III funds were allocated to provide a
before and after school tutoring program for English Language Learners.
Selected teachers working with English Language L,earners completed SIOP taining.
Grades 1,2, and6 began a Basio Skills Push-in math program.
Enhanced security carneras at Maud Abrams.

4. TNTE4NAL ACCOITNTTNG CONTROTf:

I

a

a

a

o

a

Management of the Disfiict is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
contol structure designed to ensure ttrat the assets of the District are protected from loss,
theft or mi$use and to ensure that adequate accounting data are co*piird to allow for the
preparation of finansial statements in conformity with generally lccepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control sfruc'ture is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assuranc€ that these objgctives are metl The concept of reasonable
assurance recognized that (l) the qost of a confiol should not ex€eed the benefits likety
0o be derived; and (2) the vattration of oosts and benefrts requires estimates ane
judgments by management.

4



a. nl{, IFRNAL ACCO, rrNTr'rQ. CQNI-R'OI,S (,Cg, NTrNrrEn) :

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring_that a1r adequate internal oontol structure is in place to ensurs comiliance with
applicatle laws and rogulations related to those programs. This intemal control shucture
is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal confrol sfiuiture, including that portion related to federal and
state finaneial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Disbict has complied
with applicable laws and iegulations.

5. BUDGETARYCOFITROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the district maintains budgetary controls. The
objgotlye of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance wiUr tigal provisions
embodied in:the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for titl generai fund, the special tuuenue fuod,
and the debt service fund. Projeot-length budgets arc spproved for the capital
irnprovements accounted for in flrb capital-project-fund. T# final budget u*ount ,, .

amended for tlre fiscal year is reflested in thb financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments
on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year+nd are canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations offirnd balance at June 30, 201 8.

3

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting sandards Board (cAsB). The
accounting systom of the Distriot is organized on the basis of firnds and account groups.
These firnds and account group$ are explained in 'Notes to the Financial Statemenb',
Note l.

7. CASII MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in
"Notes to the Financial statements," Note 2. The Distriot has adopted a. cash
management plan which rcquires it to deposit public funds in the New Jersey Cash

5



Management Fund or in pultic depositories protected from loss under the provisions of
the Government Unit Deposit Protiction Act ("GUDPA'1. GUDPA ** 

"nq.trd 
in f gZO

to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey.

; ?.. cAsH D{.4,ryA^c,FMEMJgOryTTr ,NUEpl:

|rc lay ryguires govemlnental unig to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New,Jersey, where the firnds are secured in accordanc,e with the Act.

{. .BrgK lrf*l{AGEMEM:

The Board caries various forms of insurancg inctuding but not limited to general
liabilify, autornobile liability and comprehensive/cotlision, hazard and theft insuraioe on
property and oontents, and fidelifl bonds.

9, OTIIERIITFORMATION:

a. fndependelt Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent
oertifredpublic accountants or registered municipal aceountants. The accounting
firm of Inverso & stewart, Lf,c, was selected 6y the Board's audit committeel
In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statues, the audit also
was designed to meet the requirements of the Title 2 u,s, code of Federal
Regulatioas, cost principles, and audit requirements for federal awards (uniform
guidance) and State of New Jersey Circular OMBI5-08. This auditor's report on
the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules is inoluded in the financiat section of this report The
auditor's reportl retated specifically to the single audit are inriuO"A inif,r ri"git
audit sections ofthis report.

10. ACI(NOWLEDGEMENTST

We would like to express our appreoiation to the members of the Township of Lower
School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and
taxplyers of the school district and thereby contributing their fult suppoft to the
development and maintenance of our financiaioperation. The preparation iithis report
could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated seryices of our
financial and accounting staff,

5
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Administrator
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
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(8s6)983-2244
Far (856) 983-6674
E-Mail: rihverso@iscprsnj.com

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAs
New Jersey Society of CPAs

INDEPENDENT AI'DITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Township of Lower School Distict
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-t)?e activities, each
major fund and the agegate remaining fund infonnation of the Lower Township School District, in the County of Cape
May, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the relatsd notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibilily for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design" implementation and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or eror.

Audito r's Responsibihty

My responsibilily is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits containedin Government Auditing Standards, issuedby the Compfioller General of the United States; and
in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Departnent of Education, State of
New Jersey. Those standards require ttrat I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves perfolming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fnancial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen! including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contol relevant to the School District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to desigrr audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc€s, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectivenesq of the School Disfiict's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sigrificant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions.

11



Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faiily, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the govenrmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Lower Township School Distict, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as of June 30,
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Requir ed Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison infonnation" schedule of the School Districtls proportionate share of the net pension
liability, and schedule of the School Disfiict's contributions, schedule of the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liabili,ty associated with the School Disftict and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such inforrnation, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of Americ4 which consisted of inquires of management about the
methods oipreparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements.

I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide me

with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on'the financial statements that collectively comprise the

Lower Township School District's basic f,rnancial statements. The introductory sectiorl combining statements and related

major fund supporting statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis,

as required by the Office of School Finance, Deparhent of Education, State of New Jersey and are not a required part of
the ba.Sic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required
by Tifle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost principles, and Audit
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and State of New
Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are also
presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.

The accompanying ssnrfining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and schedules of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain

additional procedures, including cgmparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my
opinion, the accompanying combining statements and related major firnd supporting statements and schedules and

schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly state4 in all material respects, in
relation to the basic furancial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table ofcontents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on them.

L2



Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Gwemment Auditing Standsrds, I have also issued my report dated January 31, ZOlg on my
consideration of the Lower Township School District's intemal contol over financial reporting *A .y tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other maltters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal conftol over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or bn compliance. That
report is an inlegral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Gwernment Auditing Standwds in considering the
Lower Township School Distict's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

Robert P. Inverso
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS00 1095

Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2019

L3
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certilied Public Accountdnts

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
(8s6)983-2244
Fax (856) 98il-6674
E-Mail : rinverso@iscpasnj.coh

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAS
New Jersey Society ofCPAs

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTR.OL OVER FINATICIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINAIYCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AIIDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board ofEducation

Township of Lower School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards gen€rally accepted in the United States of Americ4 the
standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in the Gwernment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements as prescribed by ttre Office of School Finance,
Deparfinent of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the govenrmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Lower Township School District, in the
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
furancial statements, whioh collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements, and have issued my
report thereon dated January 31,2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reportlng

In plqning and perforrring my audit of the financial statements, I considered the Lower Township School Disfrict's
intemal conftol over financial reporting (intemal confiol) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal confiol. Accordingly, I do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Lower Township School District's intemal control.

A de/iciency in internal control exists when the desigrr or operatioh of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functigns, to prevent, or detect and correct misstaiements on
a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's furancial siatements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A signilicant deliciency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
contol that is less severe firan a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

My consideration of internal confiol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that I consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matten

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lower Township School Distict's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the deterrnination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my
audit and, aocordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that is required to be reported under Gwernment Auditing Standards and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Office of Sihool Financa, Departrnent of Educatio& State of NIw Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal confiol and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal contol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perforrred in accordance with Government Auditing Standuds and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Deparbnent of Education, State of New Jersey, and
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, in considering the School District's internal confol and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

INVERSO &STEWART,LLC
Certifi ed Public Accountants

(\-- A I
| ,tt il' /f-
%a"nP. rnJerso
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS00 1095

Marlton, New Jersey
January 31,2019
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Lower Township School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

As management of the Board of Education of the Township of Lower, New Jersey (School District), we
offer readers of the School Disfictts financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the School
Disfiict for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letoer of fiansmittal,
which can be found in the introductory section ofthis report.

, Financial Highlights

The liabilities of the School Disnict exceeded its assets at the close of the most recent fhcal
year by $6,457,951 (net position).

Governmental activities have an unrestricted net position deficit of $14,?60,486. The
aocounting treatnents in tlie govemmental funds for compensated absences payable, net
pension liability, and the last two state aid payments, and the state statute that prohibits school
districts from maintaining more than 2%o of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance
are primarily responsible for this deficit balance.

The total net position of the School District increased by $104,910, or a l.60Yo increase from
the prior fiscal year-end balance.

Fund balance of the School District's govemnental funds increased by $1,650,112
resulting in an ending fund balance of $4,250,743. This decrease is largely due to the results
of operations ofthe General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund.

Business-type activities have unrestricted net position of $2,269,455

The School District's long-term obligations increased by $1,906,876 which is an increase in
pension liability and compensated absences and a reduction in capital leases.

I

!

I

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School District's basic financial
statements. Comparison to the prior yeal's activity is provided in this document. The basic financial
statements are comprised of tfuee components: l) District-wide financial statements, 2) Fund financial
statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

District-wide Financial Statements

The district-wide fi.nan:cial statements are desiped to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
financial activities in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The district-wide financial statements
include the statement of net position and the statement of activities.
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\"be statement of net position presents inforrnation about all of the School District's assets and liabilities.
The difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Over time, changes in net
position may serye as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School nisfict is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the School District
changed during the current fiscal year. Changes in net position are recorded in the statement of activities
when the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenles and
expenses are reported in this statement even though the resulting cash flows may be recorded in a future
period.

Both of the disrict-wide financial statem€nts distinguish functions of the School District that are supported
from taxes and intergovemmental revenues (governmental acttvities) and other functions that are intended
to recover all or most of their costs from user fees and charges (businas-type activities). Governmental
aotivities consolidate govenrmental funds including the Generai Fund, Spicial Rwenue Fund, Capital
Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Business-t1pe activities consolidate the Food Service Fund and the
After-School Program.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund Jinancial statements are desigrred to demonstrate compliance with finance-related requiiements. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain confol over resources that have been
pegregated for specific objectives. All of the funds of the School District are divided into three categories:
gwernmental funds, proprietary funds and liduciary funds.

Governmental funds accotmt for essentially the same inforrration reported in the govemmental activities of
the district-wide finanrcial statements. However, unlike the district-wide financial statemenB, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term financial resources and fund balances. Such
infonnation may be useful in evaluating the financing requirements in the near term.

Since the governmental funds and the governmental activities report information using the same functions,
it is useful to compare the inforrnation presented. Because the foc-us of each report differs, a reconciliation
is provided on the fund financial statements to assist the reader in comparing the near-term requirements
with the long-term needs.

The School Disfrict maintains four individual governmental funds. The major funds are the General Fun4
the Special Revenue Fun4 the Capital Projects Fun4 and the Debt Servlce Fund. They are presented
separately in the firnd financial statements.

The School District adopts an annual approariated budget for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and
the Debt Service Fund. A brdgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of thqse funds to
demonstrate compliance with budgetary requirements.

Proprietuy funds are used to present the sarne functions as the business-type activities presented in the
district-wide financial statements. The School District maintains one O?e of proprietary fund - the
Enterprise Fund. The firnd financial statements of the enterprise fund proviais ttre *-i iofotit tion as the
disfiict-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The School District's two enterprise funds (Food Service Fund and Day Care Program Fund) are listed
individually and are considered to be major funds.

Fiduciaryfunds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the disfict-wide finaocial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the School District's programs.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains other
supplementary information and schedules required by the New Jersey Audit Program, issued by the New
Jersey Deparbnent of Education.

District-wide Financial Analysis

The assets of the School District are classified as current assets and capital assets. Cash, invesfinents,
receivables, inventories and prepaid experuies are curreni assets. These assets are available to provide
resources for the near-term operations of the School District. The majority of the current assets are the
results ofthe tax levy and state aid collection process.

Capital assets are used in the operations of the School District. These assets are land, buildings,
improvements, equipment and vehicles. Capital assets are discussed in greater detail in the section title4
Capital Assets and Debt AdministratiorU elsewhere in this analysis.

Current and long-term liabilities are classified based on anticipated liquidation either in the near-term or in
the futurc, Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, uneamed reverues,
and current debt obligations. The liquidation of current liabilities is anticipated to be either from curre,ntly
available resources, current assets or new resources that become available drning fiscal year 2019. Long-
term liabilities such as long-terrr debt obligations and compensated absences payable will be liquidated
from resources that will become available aftlr fiscal year 20i8.

The liabilities of the primary government activities exceeded assets by $6,855,393 with an unrestricted
deficit balance of $14,733,308. The net position of the primary government does not include internal
balances.

A net investnent of 3,435,758 in land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles which provide the
seryices to the School Disfiict's public school studens. Net position of $I,666,728 has been restricted to
provide resources for future capital expansion and renovation projects, 51,299,137 has been restricted for
maintpnance projects, $10,237 has been reserved for future debt service, deficit unresticted balance of
$35,104 for Special Revenue Fund, deficit mresfiicted balance of $14,760,486, ani $1,654,297 has been
restricted for budget appropriation.

As mentioned earlier, deficit unrestricted net position are primarily due to the accounting tea-finent for
compensated absences payable, pension liability, the last two state aid payments, and state statutes that
prohibit school disficts from maintaining more than2o/o of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance.
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Lower Township School District
Comparative Summary of Net Position

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017

Govemmeirtal Activitis

2018 20t7

BusinesvType Activities

2018 2011

Distict Mde

20t72018

-

ASSETS

Cummtassds

Capital assets

$ 6,033,151 $

10,316,139

2,980,423 $

r0,088/40

ry75,U $

2,525

l,219248 $

4,077

$ 4,219,671

10.09.517

7,408,379

10,318,664

Total asseb

DeM0utflowsof

Rpsources

16349,2n 13,069,963 1377,752 1243,325 17,727,042 14,312,199

32t2,31t 4/lW,75t 32t23n 4499,751

LNBILNES

Currnt liabilities

Noncurent liabilities

2,650,881

20J84,881

t262,t53

n248glL

3,658,ilg

20,482,783

2JAA20

222W,437

1,007,769

97902

900267

50,526

Total liabilitic

Defemd Inflows of

Resources

Net Position

Net Position Consists of

Ndinvestnentin

Capihl lssds

Resticted Asets

Uuesnicted Assets

Net Position

$ 3,435/58' $

4,594,995

04J60/86)

4927,t55 $

2,950J60

2,525 S 4,077

?3,$5JA 23,511,064 1,105,670 , ,9s0J?3 24,14t432 24,461,957

-
3,255,972 912,943 3,,255,972 912,943

-t_6,?3!{lL$ (6,E55{e3) $ 272,082 $ 2n,$2 _$ , q,41,r5? -L_6,5{r,8Jr)

$ (6J30,033) $ (6,855,393) $ n2,0u $ 2n,$2

269,557 288,455

$ 3,438,283 $ 4,%1232

4,5%,695 2,950J60

(t4,490,n, 04,444,853)

$ (6/i7,951) $ (6,562,861)
++
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Lower Township School District
Comparative Schedule of Changes in Net Position

As ofand for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 and20l7

Revenues:

Charges for services

Operating Crants and

contribr.dions

Propprty taxes

State aid - unrestricted

Other revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses:

Governmental Activities:
Instruction

Tuition
Related &rvices

A&ninistrative $rvices
Central &rvices

Operations and

Maintenance

Transportaticin

Employee benefits

Inteiest on deh

Other

BusinessT ype Activities;

Food &rvice
Day Care Program

Internal Srvice
Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net

Position before transfers

ACjustment to fixed assets

Transfers \
Change in Net Position

Net Position, July I

Net Position, June 30

$

Crovernmental Activities
2018 2017

Business-Type Aotivites

2018 2017

District-Wide

2018 2017

$ 6,196,653 $ 7,244,381$ $ 6,r96,653

711,546

$ 7,244,381

761,743ts,668,092
I 6,960,565

10,t 81,719

338,148

4,422,074

16,772,745

r 0,366,506

29,363

16,379,638

l 6,960,565

10,18 1,719

338,3t7

5,183,8 l7
t6,772,745

l 0,366,506

2e,s!8
39,597,017

t69 205
43,148,524 3 r,590,688 6,908,368

-

8,006,329 50,056,892

12,054,4n
703,106

3,090,764

t,249,994

309,413

4,623,372

1,093,784

t9,735,507

126,280

36,533

12,t28,686

922,182

3,063,764

1,236,437

354,t76

6,947,278

1,1 98,539

10,848,73 I
123,726

34,917

t2,054,411

703,106

3,090,764

1,249,994

30;9413

4,623,372

t,093,784

19,735,s07

126,280

36,533

12,128,686

922,182

3,063,764

1,236,437

354,176

6,947,278

l,l 98,539

10,848,731

34,917

I,006;919

395,856

1,017,055

3E6,705

5,525,058

1,006,919

395,856

6,581,7 57

I,017,055

386,705

5,525,058

43,023,164 36,858,436 6,928,818 7,984,532 49,95t,982 38,137,485

t2s,360 (5,267,748) (20J50) 21,797 104,910 (5,245,951)

t2s,360 (s,267,748) (20,450) 2t,797
270,735

l04Bl0
(6,s62,861)

(s,24s,9sl)
(r,3r6,910)(6,8s5,3e3) (r,s87,p41) 2e2,s32

$ (6,730,033) $ (6,8s5,3e3) $ 272,082

--

$ 292,s32 $ (6,4s7,951) $ (6,562,861):

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the net position of the School Disfiict by $125,360 during the current
fiscal year. Key elements of the increase in net position for govemmental activities are as follows:

. Capital additions less depreciation expense increased the net positi onby $227 ,699.

Compensated absences increased by $56,222.

. Results of operations in the Governmental Funds increased the net position by
$1,650,117.

r Long term Debt decreased the net position by $1,719,096.
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the School Distict's nel position by $20,450. Key elements of the
increase in net position for business-type activities are as follows:

' The Food Service Fund had a net loss of $62,044 and the Day Care Program had a net
gain of $41,594.

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the School District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
fi nance-related legal requirenerrts

Gwernmental Funds - The focus of the School District's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable reiources. Such information is useful in assessing
the School District's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a osefrrl
measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School District's govemmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $4,250,743, a decrease of 93,925,791 inlomparison with tne prior year. Most of
this decrease is due to the Capital Projects Fund results of operations

The deficit unreserved fund balance for the School District at the end of the fiscal year includes a
combination of an wreserved deficit fund balance for the General Fund of $350,134 and $33,014
in the Special Relenue Fund. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) as resticted cash reserved for future
capital outlay expenditures of $139,640 2) $619,725 appropriated as 4 revenue source in the subsequent
year's budget 3) $575,089 reserved for future budget appropriation in accordance with state statute, 4)
$483,303 reserved for encumbrances, 5) $1,156,000 reserved for maintenance and 6) $10,017 reserved for
future debt service requirements.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the School Distict. As discussed earlier, the balance in the
unreserved fund balance is due, primarily, to the accounting treafinent of the last two state aid payments as

discussed in Note 18 of the notes to the basic financial statements, and state statutes that prohibit New
Jersey school disticts from maintaining more than2o/o of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

At the end of the curr€nt fiscal yeaq unassigned fund balance (budgetary basis) of the general fund was
5572f48 while total fund balanie (budgetary basis) was $g,gZi,AZ{, Asa measure of tf,e general fund's
liquidrty, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance (budgetqry basis) and total fund
balance Oudgetary basis) to total general fund expenditures. Actual Oudgetary basis) expenditures of the
General Fund including other financing uses amounJed to $29,456,086. Unreserved fund balance
(budgetary basis) represi,erfis l.94Yo of e4penditures while total fund bglance (budgetary basis) represents
11,47% ofthat same amount
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The School District's invesfinent in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30,2018, totaled $10,318,664 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investrnent in capital assets
includes land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles. The total increase in the Disfiict's
investrnent in capital assets for the cunent fiscal year was $226,147 or a 2.l9Yo increase. The increase is
due to acquisitions less current year depreciation.

Capital Asset (net of accumulated depreciation)
June30,2018 and2017

Governmental Activities
2018

-

$ 80,045

Business-T1pel Activities
2018 2017

Distict-Wide
2018 2017

$ 80,045 $ 80,045

8,682,739
t-555.880

20t7

Land
Const. in Progress
Building and Building

Improvemenls
Equipment

Net AssetS

$ 80,045 $ $

$ 10,316,139

9,692,739
1.553.355

8,621,939
1,386,15q

$ 10,088,440

2,525

-$ , 
'z's'zs

_!93_
$ 4,077

g,62l,g3g

L3e0,q33

$ 10,318,664 $1 l7

Additional information ol the School District's ,capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements (Note 5) of this report.

Long-term debt - During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the School Distict had $4,961,000 in serial
bonds payable, $2,136,814 in compensated absences, $1,919,381 in capital leases payable, and $11,706,755
in net pension liability.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that the District may issue. At the end of the
current fiscal year, the legal debt limit was $95,169,587. The available ar-rount as of June 30,2018 is
$90,208,587.

Additional infonnation on the School Disfiict's long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements (Note 7) of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered and incorporated into the preparation of the School District's budget
for the 2018-19 fiscal year.

For 2018-19 fiscal year the School Disfict is anticipating a decrease in state aid. The local tax levy in the
General Fund increased by $336,246 or a 2.00% increase. Salaries continue to increase contractually;
however, the District has managed to control costs. The 2018-19 General Fund Budget is only $5,826
greater than the previous year. The tax rate was .466 :rr-2017 and increased to .472 in 2014,
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For the Future

The Lower Toumship Public School District is in very good financial condition presently. However, a
major concern is the increased reliance on local property taxes as state aid has remained stagnant. Lower
Township is primarily a residential community, with very few large ratables; thus the burden is focused on
homeowners to share the tax burden.

In conclusion, the Lower Township Public School District has committed itself to financial excellence for
many years. In addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School Disfiict plan$ to continue its sound fiscal management to
megt the challenge of the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School District's finances for all
those with an interest in the School Disftict. Questions concerning any ofthe information provided in this
report or requests for additional furancial information should be addressed to the Lower Township School
Disnict Business Administator, 834 Seashore Rd.; Cape May, New Jersey 08204.
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A-l
LOWER TOI'T'NSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position
' June 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
lnventory (Note 6)
lntemal balances
Restricted assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalenb
Capital assets, net (Note 5)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Defened outflows of resources from pensions

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Related to pensions
Other

Unearned revenue
Accrued interest
Other liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred lnflows of resources from pensions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

CapitalProjects
Special Revenue
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 2,415,127
432,263

3,185,761
10,316,139

16,349,290

$ 1,308,060
50,723
16,444

525

$ 3,723,187
482,986

16,444

3,185,761
10,318,664

1,377,752 17,727.042

3.212.311 . 3,211,3't1

19,561,601

498,434
96,612

35
30,970

1,685,761

339,069

1,377,752

738,771
21,283

247,7'14

498,434
835,383
21,318
30,970

1,933,475

97,902
339,069

20.482.783

23,035,762

3.255.872

1.105,670 24,141,432

3,255.872

26,291,634

3,435,758

1,666,128
(35,104)

2,963,671

1,105,670 _27,3973M

2,525 3,438,283

1,666,128

{35,104)
2,963,671

(14,490,929)n4.760,486)

$ (6,730,033) s 272,082 $ (6,457,951)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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A-2

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activiti€s

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2OlB

P.rogram Reve_nues 
,

Operating
Charges for Grants and

Contributions

$ $ 660,520
499,751

53,579

138,533
14,315,709

1s.668.092

428,299
243,296 711,546

711.546

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Net

N
@

Functions/Programs

Govemmentral activities:
Instruction:

Regular
Special education
Other instruc{ion

Support Servlces:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative servii:es
School administrative services
Central services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
lnterest on long term debt
Unallocated employee benefi ts

Unallocated depreciation and amorlization
Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities:
Day care program
Food service program
lntemal service fund .

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Expenses Seruices

$ 9,855,187
1,959,179

240,045

703,106
3,090,764

403,931
846,063
309,413

4,623,372
1,093,784

126,280
't9,735,507

36.533
43.O23.1M

(703,106)
(3,037,185)

(403,931)
(846,063)
(30e,413)

(4,623,372)
(1,093,784)

12,259
(s,41e,798)

(36,533) (36,533)(27,35s,O721 (27,355,0721

$ (e,194,667)
(1,459,428)

(240,045)

$

41,594
(62,213)

$(27,355,072) $ (20.619)

Govemmental
Activities

Buslness-type
Activitie6 Total

$ (9,194,667)
(1,459,428)

(24O,045)

(703,106)
(3,037,185)

(403,e31)
(846,063)
(309,413)

(4,623,372'
(1,093,784)

'12,253
(5,419,798)

41,594
(62,213)

{20.619)

$f27.375.691)

386,705
1,017,055
5,525,058 5,525,058
6,928,818 6.196.653

$ 49.951.982 $ 6,196,053 $ 16,379,638

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied br general purposes, net
Propefi traxes, tevied for debt service, net

Federal and state aid not restricted
Tuition
Miscellaneous income
Transfer

Total general revenues, special items, extraordinary items and transfers
Change in Net Position

16,812,338
148,227

10,181,719
63,462

274,686

27,480,432
125,360

169

16,812,338

148,227
10,181,719

63,462
274,855

27.480.601
104,910

rl69
(20,450)

Net Position - July 1,
Net Position - June 30

(6,855,393) 292,532 (6,562,861)
$ (6,730,033) $ 272;082 S (6.457.95'l)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Stratements are an integral part of this statement.
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General
Fund

$ 2,238,762
122,363
252,489

3.185.761

Special
Revenue

Fund

$
278,669

Capital
Projects

Debt
SeMce
?und

B-1

Total
Govefnmental

Funds

$ 2,415,127
401,032
25.2,537

3,185,761

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL D]STRICT
Balance Sheet

Govemmental Funds
June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Assets:
qash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
lnterfund receivable
Restricted cash and cash equivalenb

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
o(her liabilities
lnterfund payables

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Excess surplus
Excess surplus - designated for

subsequent yea/s expenditures
Mainbnance reserve
Capital reserve

Assigned to:
Year-end encumbrances
Designated for subsequent yea/s

expenditures
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Totral liabilities and fund balances

$ 5.799,375 $ 278.702 s1 66.143

$ 166,143 $ 10,222

1533

10.237 $ 6,254,457

4,099

'1,685,761

33

92,513

221.258

35
96,612

35
1,685,761

221,306

1,689,893 313,806

15

15

1,008,403

575,089
1,299,137
1,s00,000

52,292

18,513
(343.952) '166,128_l9g,l91t

(35,104)

10,017
220

2,003,714

1,008,403

575,089
1,299,137
1,500,000

52,292

28,530
Q12.7081

4,109,482 166,128 10,237 4,250,743

$ 5.799.375 S n8.702 s 143 _$__1929L

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net position
(A-1) are different because:

Capital asseb used in govemmental activities are not financial resouroes
and therefure are not reported in the funds. The cost of the asseb is
$22,438,002 and the accumulated depreciation is $12,121,863.

Accrued interest on debt is not due and payable in the cunent period
and therebre is not reported as a liability in the funds.

Accounb payable related to the April 1, 2019 required PERS
conbibution that is not to be liquidatred with cunent financial
resour@s.

The Districtb proportionate share of net pension assets and liabilities
as well as pension-related defened outffows and defened inflorvs of
resources are recognized in the govemment-wide shtements and include:

Defened Outflows of resouroes firom Fensions 3,212,31'l
Net Pension Liability (1 1,706,755)
Defened lnflonvs of resources fom Pensions (3,255,8721

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
inthe cunent peiiod and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds.

Compensated Absenc6s (2,136,814')
Capital Leases (1,919,381)
General Obligation Bonds (4,961,000)

Net position of govemmental activities

10,316,139

(498,434)

(1 1,750,316)

(9.017.195)

(30,e70)
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expendlturcs and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20i8

$ 148,227

B-2

Total
Govemmental

Funds

$ 16,960,565
63,462

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Capital
Projec{s

Fund

Debt
Service

Fund
REVENUES:
Local sources:

Llocal tax levy
Tuition charges
Miscellaneous

Total revenues-local sources

State sources
Federal seur@s

Total rcvenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:

Regufar instruc{ion
Special education instruction
Other instruction
Support seMces and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student & instruction related seruices
General administrative seMes
School administrative seMces
Central services
Plant operalions and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated employee benefits

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Pringipal
Interest and other charges

Total exBenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) e)eendilures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proce€ds of Capltal Lease
Transiers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, July 1

Fund balances, June 30

30,934,707 1,555,661

$ 16,812,338
63,462

274,486

$ $

1,778 200

20017,150.286

13,714,852
69,569

1,778

348,946

,, 1,204,937

148,227

138,533

17,300,491

14,202,331

. 1,274,506

32,777,328200

31,179,071

660,520
499,751

53,579

343,901
2,309

'1,557,751 2'309

(2,090) (2.109)

160,000

, 127,080

33,026,211

8,739,416
1,459,428

240,045

9,399,936
1,959,179

240,045

703,106
3,037,185

403,931
772,995
309,413

3,198,569
1,093,784
8,930,028
2,29',t,171

703,106
3,090,764

403,93'l
772,995
309,413

3,198,569
1,093,784
9,273,929
2,293,480

160,000
127,080

287,080

(244,3641 (320) (248,883)

1,899,000

(1201
10,357

1,899,000
200

1,650,117
2.600.626

200

1.899.000
(200)
(200)

(2,309)
168,437

":-dd- -1FoEl333L
1,654,636
2,454,846

(2,0e0)
(33,014)

$ 4_'t 09.482 $ (35,104) $ 166,128 $ 10,237 $ 743
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconclliation of the Statement gf Revenues, Expenditures

and Ghanges in Fund Balanges ofGovernmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

$ 958,374
(730,675)

B-3

$ 1,650,117

227,699

160,000

(1,899,000)

19,904

(90,382)

56,222

_$___125,360-

Total net change,in fund balances - govemmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays a1e reported in the governmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the stratement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estirnated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation expense
Capitaloutlay

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govemmentalfunds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and
is reported in the statement of activities.

The proceeds of a capital lease is an other financing source of revenue in the
governmental funds but is not reported in the stratement of aciivities.

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and
is reported in the statement of activities.

ln the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when
due. ln the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is
an addition to the reconciliation. 800

Net differences between pension system contributions recognized in the fund statement
of rev€nues, expenditures and changes in fund balances and the statement of activities.

ln the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.9., compensated
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. ln the govemmental funds, however, expenditures for these items
are reported in the arnount of financial resources used (paid). When the
earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in
the reconciliation G); when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount
the difference is an addition to the re@nciliation (+1.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LOWER TOVVIVSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fgnds
June 30, 2018

$ 250,014

2,747

Self-lnsured
Health and

Prescription Fund

$ 984,056

8.0

Total

$ 1,308,060
42,490

8,233

16,444

Buslness-type Activities
lnternal Service

Enterprise Funds Fund

Food
Service
Fund

Day
Care

Program
ASSETS:

Cunent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
lntergovemmental accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
lnierfund receivable
lnventories

Total cunent assets

Noncurent as$ets:
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncunent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Cunent liabilities:
Unearned revenue
Accounts payable
Reserve for medical claims
lnterfund payable

Total cunent liabilities

Noncunent liabilities:
Compensated absences

Total noncurent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET PQSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

2,525 2,525

$ 140,935 S 252,761 _$--_____991199_ $ 1.377.752

7,023

$ 73,990
42,490

5,486

16,+44

138,410 252,761 984.056 1.375.227

271,073
€68,548)

271,073
(268,548)

14,260
2,429 736,342

247,714

21,283
738,771
247,714

7,023 16,689 ep4,056

5,086

1,007,768

92.816 97,902

92,816 5,086 97,902

99,839 21.775 984.056 'l,105,670

2,525
38,571

2,525

. 269,557

I 272,082

230,986

Total net position -$---l],qeq- $ 230,986 $

The accompanying Notes to the Basio Financial Statements are an integr:al part of this statement
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Endeil June 30, 2018

Business-type Actlvities

Funds
lnternal Servlce

Fund

Food
Service
Fund

Day
Care

Prooram

Self-lnsured
Health and

Prescription Fund Total
Operating rcvenues:
Charges for services:

Daily sales-reimbursable programs
Daily sales-non=reimbursable progtams

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Employee benefib
Supplies and materials
Purchased properly services
Depreciation
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - ngn-reimbursable programs
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch prcgram
School breakfast prcgram
Snack Program
U.S.D.A. commodiUes

Local sources:
lnterest revenue

Tolal nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Total net position - July 1

Total net position = June 30

$ $ $ $125,159
118.137 428,299 5.525.058

125,159
6.071.494

243,296 428,299 5.525.058 196,653

379,836
219,787

26,686
10,247
1,552

193,633
179,755

5,559

341,088
26,030
19,587

5,525,058
720,924

5,770,875
46,273
10,247
1,552

193,633
179,755

5,559

1.0,17.055 386,705 5,525,058 6,928,818

(773.759) 41,594 Q32.1651

8,198

367,615
268,377

1,193
66,173

169

8,198

367;615
268,3;17

1,183
66,173

169

711.715 711,715

(62,0441

103,140

41,594

189.392

(20,450)

292.532

$ 41,096 $ 230,986 $

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial StatemenF are an integral part of this statement.

$ 272,082
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Slatement of Cash Flows

Proprietery Funds
forthe Flscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Bu6iness-type Actlvltles

Enterprise Funds
lntemal Senilce

Fund

Food
Service

Fund

Day
Care

Prooram

Self-lnsulEd
Health and

Prescription Fund Total

$ 5,525,058 $ 6291,072
(e51,868)
(368,25e)

(5,398,058) (5,398,058)
127,O0O (427,'t131

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to emplgyees
Payments to suppliers
Payment for medical claims

Net cash used. for operating ac{ivities

Cash florirs from noncapltal financing acuvlties:
State sources
Federal sources

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash florrs from capltal activitiesl
Purchases of tixed assets

Gash flows fiom investlng activiti€l
lnterest and dividends

Net cash prcvided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Balances : July.1

Balances - June 30

Reconciliation oJ operating loss to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating ac{ivilies:
Depreciation
Commbdities
(lncrease) decrease in accounts rcceivable

. (lncrease) decrease in inventories
(lncrease)/decrease in inbrfund receivable

. lncrease(decreage) in interfund payable
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable

. lncrease (dectease) in uneamed revenue
lncrease (decrease) in reserve for medical claims
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences

Net cash provided by (used br) operating activities

$ 329,436
(58s,042)
(351,1 01)

$ 436,578
(366,826)
(17,1s8)

.52564-
(606.70n

169
169:

8,111

, 632,306
640.4',t7

33,879

40,111

52,554

197,420

8,11 1

632,306
64q,4't7

213,473

'!,0e4,587

$ 1,308,060

$ (732,165)

-"-

169
169

't27,000

857.056

$ 73,990 $ 250,014 984,056

$ rt73,75e) $ 41,594 $

1,552
66,173
(1,1 33)

725
83,934
(2,1 1s)

3,338

1,041

1,897
7,238

1,552
66,173

(s2)
725

83,934
(2,118)

280,795.
10,976

(151,e02)

__Jffq!_
$ Q27.1131

278,902

(151,e02)
14,s81 824

$ (606,707) $ 52,594 $ 127,000

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Stiatements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-7
LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Fiduciary Net position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 20{B

Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust

Agency
Funds

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivable

Totalassets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
lnterfund payable
Due to student groups

$ 167,612 $ 27,'164

167,612 27,164::

13,392
31,231

27 164

Total liabilities 44,623 _$ n,164

NET POSITION:
Restricted for:
Unemployment claims $ 122,989

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financialstatements are an integral part of this statement.

36



LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DTSTRICT
Statement of Ghanges in Fiduciary Net position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20ig

B-8

Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust

$ 40,000
32
72.542

149
1

72,691

61.2U

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Board contributions
Employee withholdings

Total Contributions

lnvestment earnings:
lnterest
Net investment earnings

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment payments

Totaldeductions
1

Change in net position

Net position - July 1

Net position - June 30

11,497

111,502

$ 122,ggg

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Lower Township School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SI'MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Reporting Entity - The Lower Township School District (District) is a Tlpe II gchool district located in
Cape May County, New Jersey and covers an area of approximately 31 square miles. As a Type II school distict, it functions
independently through a tsoard of Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. These

terms are staggered so that three member's tems expire each year. The purpose of the Diqfiict is to provide educational
services for all of Lower Township's students in grades preschool thtough 6. Students in grades 7 through 12 altend Lower
Cape May Regional. The Lower Tbwnship Sctrool nistrict has an approx-imate enrollment it June 30, 2018 of 1,657 students.

The primary criteria for including activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set forttr in Section 2100 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codilication of Governnental Accountrng and Financial Reporting
Standards is the degree if oversight re.ponribility maintained by tire School Distict. Oversight responsibility includei
furancial interdependency, seleetion of goveming authority, designation of management, ability to sigrrificantly influence
operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the School district
over which the Board exercises operating control.

Component Units - GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial:Reporting EntW and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Unit, proide guidance that all entities associated with a primary government

are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the financial reporting entity. A primary government

is financially aciountable not only for the organizations that make up its legal entity, but also for legally sgparate

organizations that meet the criteria established by GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 39. In addition, GASB Statement No.

61, provides additional guidance for organization$ that do not meel the financial accountability criteria for inclusion as

component units but that nevertheless should be included because the ptimary government's management determines that it
would be misleading to exclude them. GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component.Unfs - an

Amendment of. GASB Statement No. 14 ar.nends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of
component units of all state and local goverqnents. The iaaitionat criteria requires blending of a component unit
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary govemment is the sole corporate member. Thrcre were no

additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above. Furthermore, the

School Districi is not includable in any other reporting entity on ttre basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the School Distict have been prepared in conformity with accounting principtes generally

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govepmental units. The Governrnental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) is the accgpted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial

reporting principles. The more signifrcant of the School Districfs accounting policies are described below.

The School Districfs basic financial statements consists ofgbvernment-wide statements, including a statement ofnetposition
and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information

about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government,

except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of the School Disfrict that are

governmental and ihose that are considered business-type activities. The statement of net position presents the

hnancial condition of the govern4ental and business-type activities of the School Disfiict at fiscal year'end. The

statement ofactivities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for eagh progr-am or
function of the School District's governmental activitieS and for the business-type activiti€s of the School Distict.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a servioe, program or deparfrnent an4 therefore, clemly

identifiable to a particular function. The policy of the School District is to not allocate indirect expens€s to functiors
in the statement of activities. Program revenues incMe charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered

by the program, gtants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requiremenls of a
particular progrcm and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.
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Lower Township School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

f , SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOIJNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-wide Statements (Continued) - Revenues, which are not classified as progran revenues, are presented
as generat revenues of the School Distict with certain limited excepions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program reven-u€s identifies the extent to which each business segment or govemmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the School Disfiict.

Fund Financial Statements - During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain
School Distict functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonsfiate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designetl to present financial information oittte School Disfiict at this m6re
detailed level, The focus of govemmental and enterprise firnd financial statements is ol major funds. Each major
fund is presented in a single column. The fiduciary fund is reported by type. The School Distict uses funds to
maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entrty with a self-
balancing set of accounts. There are tluee categories of funds: governmcntal, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmentat Funds - Govemmental funds are those through which most governmental functions tpically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are

assigned to the various govemmental funds according to the puposes for which they may or must be used. Cunent liabilities
are assigrred to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is
reported as fund balance. The following are the School District's major govemmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School Distict and is used to account for all
financial resources except thoserequired to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non-insfuctional equipment classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Departnent of Education, the School District includes budgeted capital outlay in
this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they pertain to govemmental
entities state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements

as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from uuestricted revenues.

Resources forbudgaed capital outlay pulposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid disfict taxes and

appropriated firnd balance. Expenditures are those which result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for
lan{ existing buildings, improvements of grouds, constfuption of buildings, additions to orremodeling of buildings
and the purchase of built-in equipment.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to accormt for and report the proceeds of specific rev€nues

sour-ces that are resticted or committed to o6penditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used !o account and report financial resources that are restricted,

committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or consffuction of capital facilities
artd ottrer capital assets, other than those financed by proprieAry funds. The financial resources are derived from New
Jersey Economic Development Authority grants, temporaxy notes or serial bonds which are specifically authorized by
the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,

committe4 orassigred to expenditure for principal and interest.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for the School District's ongoing activities, which are similar to
those in the private sector.
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Lower Township Sc.hool District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary Funds (Continued)

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to accoqnt for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the School Disfiict is that all costs (expenses, including
depreciation) ofproviding goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be finanoed or recovered primanl>'
through user charges; or, where the School District has decided that periodic determination ofrevenues earned, expenses

incwe4 andlorn€t ingome is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management confrol, accountability,
or other purposes.

The School Disfict's enterprise fitnds are:

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for the financial ftansactions related to the food service operations.

Day Care Program - This fund accounts for the financial transaptions related to the day care operations.

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund has been established to account for financing ofemployee's
self-insured health insurance and prescription plan.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measuremgnt focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurren! associated with their -activity are included on their balance sheels.

Their.reported fund equrty (net position) is segregated into investment in capital assets, net of related dett, and unresfficted

net position, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses)

in net total position.

Depreciatiol of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations.

Accumulated depreciation is reported on propriet4ry fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated

useful lives using the straight-line method. The estirnated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment t2 Years
LightTrucks and Vehicles 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicles 6 Years

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category

is split into two classifications: tust funds and agency funds. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the School

Oistrict in a tustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizationst g4"I guu-"ry-tnt, an!/or other funds (i.e.

payroll and student activities). They are custodial in nature (assets equal liatilities) and do not involve measurement of
ieiuh of operations. The School District has three fiduciary funds; an unemployment compensation nust fund, a payroll

fund and student activities.

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements 1-The-gov-emment-qide Fgti{ statements T9 pl"p.*.$Y*q t1t9 economic

r€sources measwement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the School District are included

on the statement of net position.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental ftnds are accounted for using a flow of curent financial resources

measurement focus. With this measriement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the

balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e. revatues

and other financing sources) and uses (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) of current finansial resources. This

approach differs from the manner in which the govelnmeltat qctiyilies of the ggyePmenj:wide financial statements are

prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, tlierefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better

identi$ the relationship between the government-wide statements aqd the statements fo-r govemmental funds.
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Lower Township School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30r 2018

1. SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIINTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) . Like the govemment-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are aocounted
for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the statement of net position. The statement of changes in fund net position pt r"nt" iorrr*es (i.e.
revenues) and depreases (i.e. expeqses) in net total position. The statement of cash flows provides information about how
the School District financeq and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. Fiduciary funds are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accountins:
Basis of accounting determines when fiansactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the furancial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Govemmental funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.

Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recogrition of revenue, the recording of
unearned revenue, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange fransactions, in which each
party gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.

"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means that the resources will be

collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enougtr thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the School District, available means expected to be received within sixty days after fiscal
year end,

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School Distict receives value without directly giving equal value in retum,
include Ad Valorem (properly) taxes, g1an6, entitlements, and donalions. Ad Valorem (-Properly') Taxes are susceptible
to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school disfrict the entire balance of
taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the schopl year. The School District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrue!) at the start of the fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available.
The School Distict is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable". With the exception of restricted formula aids recorded in thr special revenue
fund, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recopized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirgments
have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which speciS the fiscal year when the resources

are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the School Distict
must provide local reso-urces to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are

provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis.

Under the modified acclual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at

fiscal year-end; tuition, grants, fees, and rentals.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The

fair value of donated commodities used during the fiscal year is reported in the operating statement as an expenge. Unused

donated commodities are reported as uneanred revenue. The measurement focus of governmental fund accoulting is on
decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expendrtures are generally recogrized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurre{ if nneasurable. Allocations of cos! such as depreciation
andamortization, are not recognized in govemmental funds.

Budgets/Budgetary Control - Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach fiscal year for the general,

special tevenue, and debJ service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for ttrcir approyal. Budgets are

prepared using the modified acqu4l basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant

totheminimumchartofaccountsreferencedinN.J.A.C.6:23A-16.2(f)1. TransfersofappropriationsmaybemadebySchool
Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C. 64:234-13.3.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BudgetslBudgetary Control (Continued) - Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
managrement confiol device during the fiscal year. For governmental n nAr tfte.e are no substanlialdifhrences Letrveen the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the
exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or more-June state aid payments for budgetary purposes
only and the special revenue fund. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension-of Orrnat U-udgJtary inlegration
in the governmental fund types. unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records ofthe special revenue-fund are maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the budgetary basis recogttizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes thi related rev€,nues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis financial reports.

The budget, as detailed on Extribit C-1, Exhibit C-2 and,Exhibit I-3, includes all amendmenls to the adopted budge! if any.

Exhibi! C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues and expenditures fiom
the budgetary basis ofaccounting as presented in the general frrnd budgetary comparison schedule and the special revenue
fundbudgetary comparison schedule to the GAAP basis ofaccounting as presenled in the statement ofrevenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds. Note that the SCtrooi District does not report encumbrances oot"t-aiog
at yew end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows -bained accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recogrition policy for the one or more June state aid payments.

Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitnents for the expenditure of
resources are rpcorded to reserye a portion of the applicable appropriation. Eocumbrances are a component of fund balance
at fiqcal year end as they do not csnstitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitrnents related to unperformed contracts
for goods and services. Open encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the spgcial revenu€ fund" which have not
been previously restricted, committed, or assigned, should be included within committed or assigned fund balance, as
appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, for which the School District has received advances of grant
awards, and all eligibility and time requirements satisfied are reflected on the balance sheet as unearned grant rev€,nue at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next figcal year. An entry will be made at the beginning of the
next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of
the current fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equlvalents and fnvestments - Cash and cash equivalents, for all funds, include petty cash, change funds, cash
in banks and all highly liquid invesfinents with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are state{ at
cost plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash flows for the
proprietary firnds. U.S. Treasqry and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investnents are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school disticts are limited as to the tlpes of invesfinents and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 provides a list ofpermissible invesfinents that may be purchaged byNew Jersey sohool districts.

N.J.S,A. l7:941et seq. establishes the requirements for the secunty of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires
that no govemmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with
the Governmental Unit Deposit Frotection Act (GUDPA), a multiple financial institution collateral pool, which was enacted
n 1970 to protect governmental units ftom a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public
depositories include State or federally charterpd banks, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch office in
the State of New Jersey, the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secwe the deposits of
Governmental Units.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGIYIFICAITT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash' Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 
= If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the

collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount ofthpir deposits to the govemmental units.

Tuition Receivable - Tirition charges were established by the School Distict based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjusnnent when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Payable - Tirition charges for the fiscal yean ended June 30, 2018 and,20l7 were based on rates established by the
receiving school distict. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been detennined.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market. The costs are determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

The cost of inventories in governmental fund types is recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed,
and is not recorded since any amounts are considered immaterial to the basic financial statements.

Inventories recorded in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund tpes are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rattrer than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid experurcs recorded on the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund
bpes represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018.

In the governmenAl fund fypes, however, pa)'rnents for prepaid items are fully recognized as an expenditure in the fiscal
year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no expenditure allocation to future accounting periods is
required (non-allocation method). This is consistent with the basic governmental concept that only expendablg financial
resourges are reported by a specific fund.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows ofresources. This separate financial statement elemen! deferred outflows ofresources,
represents a oonsumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recog4ized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement elemen! deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recogrrized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time,

Short-Term Interfund Receivabtes / Payables - Short-tenn interfrxrd receivables / payables represent amounts that are
owe4 other than charges for goods or services re,ndered to / from a particular fund in the School District and that are due
within one year. These amounts are eliminaled in the governmental and business-t1pe columns of the statement of net
po5ition, except for the net residual amounts dle between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as
internal balances.

Capital Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.
These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the governmental
activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements.
Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the govemmenl-
wide siatement of net position and the proprietary ftrnd statement of net position.

All capital assets are capitalizedat cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the
fiscal year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as ofthe date received. The School DisfticJ maintains
a capifu ization threshold of $2,000. The School Distict does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized;
the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asseJ's life are
not. All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
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1. SIIMMARY OF SIGITIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Gorernmental
Activities

FstimatedlirpsDescri*ion

Iand and Improvenpnts
Buildin gs. and Inprovernents
Fumiture and fruipnrcnt
Vehicles

10-20years
10-50 years

5-20 years

5-10 years

Business-Type
Actirities

Ebtimated

N/A
N/A

12years
46 years

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue ariqes when assets are recogrrized before revenue recognition criteria have beqr
satisfied and are recorded as a liability until the revenue is both measurable and the School District is eligible to realiz.ethe
revenue.

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be pai{ such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the confiol of the School Disfiict and its employees, is accrued as

the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future seryices, or th4t are contingent on
a specific event that is outside the control ofthe School District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which
such $errrices are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid semFensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be
paid with expendable available financial resources. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is
recorded as a fund liabilify.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations - Allpayables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations arre reported
on the goveqrnent-wide furancial statements, and all payableq, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable Aom
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary frrnd financial statements. ln general, governnental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely m4nner and in full from current financial resources are reported as

obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits and
contractualy required pension contributions that will be paid from govemmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable available financial
resources. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between the summation of assets and deferred outflows of resources,
and the summation of liabilities and deferred inflows of reso-urces. Net position is classified into the following three
components:

Net Investment in Capitat Assets - This component represents capitat assets, net of accumulated depreciation, net of
outstanding balances of borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the School District or through extemal restrictions imposed by creditors; grantors or law or regulations
of other govemments.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

Unrestricted - Net position is reported as unresticted when it does not meet the criteria of the other two components of net
position.

It is the School District's policy to apply resticted resources when an expense is incuned for purposes for which both
resticted and unrestricted assets are avaitaUte.

Fund Balance - The School Distict reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hiermchy based primarily on the
extent to which the School District is bound to honor consfiaints on the specific purposes for which amouttt" io tttoir n ndt
can be spent. The School District's classifications, and policies for determining iuch classifications, are o{i follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or conffactually required to be maintained intact. Thc *not in spendable
form" criteria includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts.
The School District had no nonspendable fund balance at June 30, 2018.

Restricted - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are resfricted to specific purposes. Such
resfictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (a) extemally imposed by creditors,
ganlors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; ar (b) imposed by law through constifirtional
provisions or enabling leglslation.

Committed - This fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific pulposes pursuanJ

to consfraints imposed by formal action of the School District's highest level of decision making authority, which for
the School Disffict is the Board of Education. Onpe committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Board of Education iemoves, or changes, the specified use by taking the same tJpe of action imposing the
commitment

Assigned - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are constained by the School District's intent tobe
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, Intent is expressed by either the Board of Education
or by the Business Adminisfiatot to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority to assigr amounts to be
used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This fund balance classification is the residual classification for ttre General Fund. It represents fund
balance that has not been assiped to other funds and $rat has not bee,n restricte4 committed, or assigled to specific
purpose$ within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports'a positive unassigrred fund balance

4mount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incuned for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it,may be necessary to report a negative unassiped fund balance

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, it is the
School District's pohcy to spend resticted fund balances first. Likewise, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School Disfiict to
spend fund balances, if appropriate, in the following order: committed assigned, then unassigned.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly
from the primpry activity of the proprietary funds. For the School District, these revenues are sales for the food service
program. 

- 
Non-operating revenues p-rincipitty consist of interest income eamed on various interest bearing accounts and

fgdgral and state subsidy reimbursements for the food service program.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary activity of the fund.
There are no non-operating expenses

Interfunds - Interfund receivables and payables that arise from transactions between funds are recorded by all funds affected
by such transactions in the period in which the transaction is executed,

45



Lower Township School Districj
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

r. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAIYT ACCOIJNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement 83, Certain Asset
Retireryent Obligations. This Statement addresses accounting and financial r€porting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROS). An ARO is a legally enforpeable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. Thc requirements
of this Statement are effgctive for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, Management is cunenfly evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this Statement on the Distict's financial statements.

In January 2017 ,thisGASB issued Statement 84, Fiduciory Activities. The objective ofthis Statement is to improve guidance
regarding the identification offiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities
should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activitiei of all state and local govemments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is contolling the assels of the fiduciary activity and (2)
the beneficiaries with whom a frauciary relationship eiists. Separate criteria are incMed to identiS fiduciary component
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The reqlirements ofthis Statement ar€ effective
for reporting periods beginning after December_15, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
this Statement on the Disfict's financial statem-ents.

In June 2017 , the GASB issued Shtement 87, Leases. This Statement increases the usefulness of govenrments' financial
statements by requiring recogrrition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that pfeviously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows ofresources or outflows ofresources based on the paynent provisions ofthe contract. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2019, Management is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this Staternent on ttre bistriCt's financial statements.

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrovtring and Direct
Placements. The requirements of this Statement will improve furancial reporting by providing users of financial statements

with essential information that currently is not consistently provided. In addition, infonnation about resornces to liquidate
debt and the risla associated with changes in terms associated with debt will be disclosed. As a resul! users will have better
information to understand the effects of debt on a govemnlent's future resource flows. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,2018. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption ofthis Statemcnt on the District's fmancial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued StatementS9, Accountingfor Interest Cost Incarred Before the End of a Construction Period
This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end ofa construction period be recogrized as an expense in the
pCriod in which the cost is incurred for financial stateme,nts plepared using the economic resour9es measurement focls. As
a result, interest cost incurred before the end ofa constuction period will not be included in the historical cost ofa capital
asset reported in a business-type activrty or enterprise fund. This Stat€ment also reiterates that in financial statements
pr"pared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period should be recogpiznd w an expendituro on a basis consistent with govemmental fund accounting principles. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Mtnagement is
currently evaluating the impacl of the adoption of this Statement on the District's financial statements.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUMLENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
School District's deposits might not be recovered. Although the School District does not have a formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, N,J.S.A. l7:9:4letseq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public depositories
protected from loss under the proviqions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Unit (GIJDPA). Under the Act, the
first $250,000 of govemmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Dgposit Ingurance Corporation
(FDIC). Public funds owned by the School district in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA.
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2. CASH AND CASH EQIIIVALENTS

However, GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings of funds that pass to the School
District relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are classified as uninsured and uncollateralized. Of the
School Disffict's amount on deposit of $4,770,941as of June 30, 2018, $250,000 was insured under FDIC and the remaining
balance of $4,520,941 was colliteralized under GUDPA.

3. CAPITAL RBSERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserye account was established by the School Disfiict for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserye account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget. Funds placed in the capital reserve account are resticted to,capital projects in
the School Disfrict's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the New Jersey
Department of Education, a school district may increase the balance in the capital reserv€ by appropriating funds in the
annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by tansfer by board resolution at fiscal year-end (June I to June 30) ofany
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A school distict may also appropriate
additional anounts when the express approval of the volers has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time
or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6:23A-14.1(9!), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of qncompleted capital projects
in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July l, 2Ol7 talune 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Balance - July 1,2017
Increased by:

Transfer per Resolution

s I

r,499,999

Balance - June 30, 2018 $ 1,500,000

The June 30,2018 capital reserye balance does not exceed the LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects.

4. RECETVABLES

Accounts receivables at June 30, 2018 consisted of accounts (fees) and intergovemmental grants. All intergovemmental
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the"stable condition of State programs and the current fiscal year guarantee

of federal funds.

A,ccounts receivable at June 30, 2018 for the School Disfict's individual major and fidlciary funds, in the aggtegate, arq as

follows:

General
Ftrnd..-

s llel81
ll9

10,063

Special
Rerrcnue

Fhnd
Proprietary

Fbnd

-

$ 558
41,932
8,233

Total
Intergovemmental

State
Federal
Other

$ $ ttz739
32O,720

--r8zry-
$ 451,755

278,669

s t2363 s 278,669 STotal
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Balance

June 30.2017 Additions
Gor,ernmental Activities :

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Iand
C.onstruction in Progres s

Total Capital Assets not being
Depreciation

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Building and Inprovenrcnts
Equipment
Total Historical Cost

Le ss Ac cumulated Depreci ati o n :
Building an d Inprovernents
Equipment

Total Accunm lated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net

$ 80,045 $

80,045

21,781,640 958,374

(11,773,245) (n0,675\

10,008,395 227,699

Cnvemnental Activities C.ap ital
Assets, Net $ 10,088,,140 s 227,699 $

Bus ines s-Type Activities :

Adjushnenb/
Deletions

Bslance
30 2018

$ 80,045$

18,182,651

3,599,999

429,503

528,87L 382,057

382,057

80,045

18,612,154

3,745,903

22,357,957

Q,ng4ts)
(2,192,M8)

(9,560,712)

Q,212,533)

(368,703)

Q61,972) G8e0s7)

Q82,057) (12,t21,863\

10,236,094

-$
(1,552)

$ 10,316,139

$ nL073
(268,548)

(9,2t9)
9219

Equipnrent
kss - Accunulated Depreciation
Bus ines s -Type Activities Capital

Assets, Net

$ 280,292 $

Q76,215)

s 4,077 $ (1,552) $ $ 2,525

Depreciation expense in the amount of $730,675 was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Function Amount

Instruction
School Administration
Plant operations & maintenance
Unallocated

Total depreciation eryense

$ 517,473

73,68
109,601

36,533
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6. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Proprietary Funds at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Food
Supplies

13,603

2,841
$

_$ 16,444-

7. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS

During fhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following slanges occurred in long-term obligations:

Principal
Outstanding

Principal
Outstanding Due Wthin

One Year

-

$ 64,688
l14,3g l
160,000

June 30,2017 Additions Reductions June 30,2018
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences
Capital Lease Payable
Serial Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences

$ 2,193,036
40,295

5,12l,ooo
15,276,505

_$ n,Po,sr6

$

l,ggg,000
$ 56,222

lg,g04
160,000

3.s69.7s0

$ 2,136,814
l,g1g,3gl
4,961,000

11,706,755

-

$ 1,899,000 $ 3,905,976 $ 20,723,950 -$ 33e,062_

$ 82,498 $ 15,404 $ $ 97,902 $

$ 82,498 $ 15,404 $ $ 97,902 $

Bonds Payable - Bonds and loans are authorized in accordance with Sate law by the voters of the School District through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the School
District are as follows:

Serial Bonds dated April 6,2017 in the amount of $4,961,000 due in annual instaltnents througlr April !,2036,
bearing interest rates of 2.00%o to 3.00%.
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

As of June 30, 2018, principal and inierest due on bonds outstandin! is as follows:

Flscal Year

Fpdng June 30,

20t9
:2.020

202t
2022
2V23
20?i4-2c28
2029-2033
203+2036

$ 160"000

160,000

200,000
225,N0
250,000

1,42O,0O0

1,600,000

?+0,ooo

$ 123,880

120,680

ll7,4g0
113,490

l0g,gg0
466.,400

285,100

. .56,340

Princiml Interest Total

$ 283,880
280,680

3t7ASO
338,480
358,980

1,886,400

1,885,100

1.w2.340

$ 4,961,fJ0/O$1,392,340$6,353,340

Capital Leases - At June 30, the Disfiict is leasing White Boards totaling $20,381 and Energy Savings totaling $1,899,000
under capital leases. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease palments under the capital lease agreements:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2At9
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038

114,381

100,000
64,000
59,000

64,000
350,000
496,400
672,000

63,317
59,714
56,615
54,572
52,494

229,726
L60,448
63,399

$ $ $ 177,698
159,714
120,615
113,572
1t6,494
579,726
656,448

-lw-9,,J,65t9,6!6$ 1,919,381 $ 740,285

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund fiomwhich the employees' salaries are paid.

S. OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2018, the School District had an operating lease agreement in effect for copiers.
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8. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 201 8 and20l7 , were $74,904 and $76,1 t 8 respectively.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Endine June 30.-.+--r--- Amount

2019
2024
2o2l

$ 57,838
51,397
10.989

Tier

-

t
2
J

4
5

f)efinitinn
Members who were enrolled prior to July l, 2007
Members rrho were eligible to enroll onbr after July LZA07 and prior to November 2, 2008

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 21,2010
Members w-ho were eligible to enroll on or after May 21,2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 201I

$ 120,224

9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - Substantially all of the School Districfs employees participate in one of the following pension plans

which have been established by State statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits
(Division): the Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). In
addition, several School District employees participate in the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP), which is a
defined contribution pension plan. This plan is administered by Prudential Financial for the Division. Each plan has a Board
of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration. The Division issues a publicly available finaneial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State

of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits. P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,08625-0295

Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund ([PAF)

Plan Description - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension

plan, witha special funding situation, which was established on January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66.
Thp State of New Jersey (the "State') is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contributions, excluding any local
employer early retirement incentive (ERI) contributions. Thrc TPAF's desipated pur-pose is to provide retirement, death and

disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. Membership in the TPAF is mandatory for substantially all teachers

or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified. The TPAF's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the adminisftation of the TPAF.

ItgstingandBenefitPrwisions-T\evestingandbenefitprovisionsaresetbyN.J.S.A. 184:66.TPAFprovidesretirement
death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical benefits, which vest after 25 years

of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their oyn confributions an4 after
tlree years of service credit, become vested for 2o/o of related interest eamed on the ponfiibutions. In the case of death before
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

The following represents the mem-bership tiers for TPAF:

Service retirement benefits of l/55ft of final average salary for each year of,service credit is available to tiers I and 2 members

upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retiremqnt benefits of 1/60ft of fural average

salary for eachyear of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65.
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9. PENSTON PLANS (CONTTNUED)

Teachgrsr Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) - Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2
members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62with25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65
with 30 or more y.utt oi'rJ*ice credit. Benefits are reluced by a fraction of a percent for each *onth that a member rJtires
prior to the retirement age for his4rer respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least l0 years
of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for their respective tier,

Contributions - The contribution requirements ofplan members are determined byN.J.S.A,l84:66 and requires confibutions
by active members and contributing employers. Pusua4 to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 201l, effective October 1,

201l, the active membbr contribution rate was increased to 6 .SYi. AnadCntional 1.0% increase is being phased-in over seven
years beginning on July 1,2012. The member contibution rate was 7.34o/o n State fiscal year 2018. The phase-in of the
additional incremental member contribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent State fiscal year. The State's pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization'of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory goup inswance benefits is based on actual
claims paid.

For fiscal year2OlT,the State's pension confiibution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

Under current statute, all employer aonfiibutions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the School Distict and
all other related non-contrib-uting employers. No nonnal or accrued liability contribution by the School District has been
required over the several preceding fiscal years. These on-behalfcontributions by the State ofNew Jersey are considered a

special funding situation, under the definition of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Repartingfor Pensions.

The School District was not required to rrake any contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018 because of the 100.00% special funding situalion with the State ofNew Jersey.

Based on the most recent TPAF measurement date of June 3l,20l7,the State's contractually required contribution, on-
behalf of the School District, to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $1,263,796 and was paid by
April 1, 2018. School District employee confiibutions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were

$857,440.

Pension Liabitities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Defened Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions - For pqrposes of measuring the net pension liability, defened oulflows of resources and deferred inflows of
reso-urces related topensions, and penbion expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers' Pension

and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions toldeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contibutions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investrnents are reported at fair
value.

At June 30, 2018, the School Disfiict was not required to report a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension

liability because of a l00o/o special funding situation by the State of New Jersey.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School District recognized pension expense of $5,256,775 and revenue of $5,256,775
for support provided by the State. Although the School Disfiict does not report net pension liability or deferred outflows or
inflows related to the TPAF, the following schedule illustrates the collective net pension liabilty and defened items and the

State's portion of the net pension liability associated with the School District.
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9. PENSTON PLAITS (CONTINUED)

Teachers!Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

The collective amounts are the total of all New Jersey local governments participating in the TPAF plan.

Actuarial assumptions -The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was detennined by an actuarial

valuation as of July 'l,2}l6,which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement

Inflation:2.25%
Salary Increases: Varies based on experience
Investrnent Rate of Return : 7 .00o/o

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members reflecting

mortality improvement ol a generational basis based on a60-year average of Social Security data fiom 1953 ts2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July l, 20l6valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July l, 2012toJune 30, 2015.

Long-Term hpected Rate of Return- In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan

invesgnents (7.00% at June 3O,2Ol7) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the

DMsion of Investrnents and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board oftrustees and the actuaries.-The long-terrt
expected rate of return was deJermined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real

rates ofrefum (expected retun$, net ofpension plan investrnent expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset

class. These ranges are combined to produced the long-term expected rate of retutn by weighting the expected firture real

rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

defened of 879 $ t7 II
ll 9 I

Collective net pension liability (Non-Employer-
ofNew

S1ate's portion of the net pension liability that
with the School District

was associated with the School Distict as a percentage
State's liability thattheof net

ofthe collective
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9. PENSTON PLANS (CONTTNUED)

Teachers! Pension and Annuity Fund (IPAF) (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates ofrefurn for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of
Jrrne 30, 2017 we summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Absolute return/risk mitigation
Cash Equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
Investrnent grade credit
Public high yield
Global diversified credit
Credit oriented hedge funds
Dsbt related private equity
Debt related real estate
Private real asset
Equrty related real estate
U.S. Equity
Non'U.S. developed markets equrty
Emerging martets equity
BuyoutVventure capital

05,000/o

05.50%
03.00%
10.007o
02.50%
05.00%
01.00%
02.00%
01.00%
0250%
06.25o/o

30.00%
1150%
0650%
08.25%

05.51o/o

01.007o
01.870/o

03;18%
06.82%
07.10%
06.60%
t0.63%
06.61%
Lt.83%
09,23%
08.t9%
09.00%
11.640/o

1308%
100.00%

Discount rate. The discpunt rate used to measure the State's total pension liability was 4 .25o/o u of June 30,2017 . This single
blended discount rat€ was based on the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plao invesfinents of 7.00%o, and a

municipal bond rate of 3.58Yp as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Mlnicipal Bond Index which
includes tax.exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member

contribution rates and that contributions from employers (State of New Jersey) will bp made based on the contribution rate

in the most recent fiscal year. The state contributed 40% of the actuarially deterurined contributions. Based on those

assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be aplable to make projected future benefit payments of
current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of,return on plan invesfrnents was applied to
projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that
date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. As
previously mentioned, TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays l00o/o af the School District's annual
required ponfribution. As such, the proportionate share of the net pension liabil$ as of June 30,2017, the pension plans

measurement date, atfibutable to the School District is $0.00, and the State of New Jersey'$ proportionate share of the net
pension liability, atfibutable to the School District, using a discount rate of 4.25%s, as well as w-hat the School Disfrict's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discormt rate that is I percentage point
lower (3.25%) or I percentage point higher (5.25o/o)that the current rate:
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9. PENSTON PLANS (CONTT|IUED)

Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

l7o Decrease
(3.2s%l

Current
Discount Rate

(4.25%t)
1olo Increase

6.2s%l
District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability

State's proportionate share ofthe
net pension liability associated withthe
School District

$ $

90,151,135 75,882,790

$ 90,151,135 $ 75,882,790

$

6!&l,qaa

$ 64,128,466:

Detailed infonnation about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

PIan Destiption -The Public Employees'Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which was established on January l, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A. The PERS designated purpose to
is to provide retiremen! death and disability, and medical beaefits to certain qualified members. Membership in the PERS

is mandatory for substantially alt firll-time employees of the School Disfiict, provided the employee is not required to be a

member of another state-administered retirement system or other state pension fund or local jurisdiction's pension fund. The

PERS's Board of Trustees is primarily responsible for the administration of the PERS.

Yesting and Bene/it Provisions -The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:l5A and 43:3B. PERS provides
retiremen! death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except medical benefits, which vest after
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
Members who were enrolled priorto July tr,

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July l, 2007 and prior to Novenrber 2,,2008

Members who were eligible to enroll on or afterNovember2,2}}} and prior tnMay2l,20l0
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 2l,20l0 and prior to Jule 28, 201I
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2}lt

Service retirement benefits of l/55ft of final average salary for each year ofservice credit is availatle to tiers I and 2 members

upon reacling age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement'benefits of l/60e of final avilage
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4before age 62

with 25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Be1efit1 are re{uced
by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age for hiVher respective tier, Defened
retirement is available to members who have at least l0 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for their respective tier.

I
2
J

4
5
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9. PENSION PLANS (CONTTIruED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERD (Continued)

Contributions - The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by NJ.S.A 43: 15A and requires contributions
by active members and contibuting employers. Members contribute at a unifolm rate. Pursuant to the provisions ofChapter
78, P.L. 201l, effective October I ,2011, the active member confibution rate was increasedto 6.50/o. An additional 1.0%
increase is being phased-in over seven years beginning on July l,2}l2. The member contribution rate was 7.34Vo nstate
fiscal year 2018. The phase-in of the additional incremental rnember contribution rate takes place in July of each subsequent
State fiscal year. The rate for members who are eligible for the Prosecutors Part of PERS (Chapter 336, P.L. 2001) increased
from 8.5% of base salary to l0%. Employers' contribution arnounts are based on an actuarially determined rate. The School
District's contribution amounts are based on an actuarially detennined rate which included the nomal cost and unfunded
accrued liability.

The School District's confiactually required contribrtion rate for the fiscal year ended June 3O 2018 was 15.55% of the
School District's covered payroll. This qmount was actuarially determined as the amount that when combined with employee
confibutions, is expected to finance the costs ofbenefits eatned by employees during the year, including an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

BasedonthemostrecentPERSmeasurementdateofJune 30,2OlT,theSchoolDistrictscontractuallyrequiredcontribution
to the pension plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $468,671and was paid by April 1, 2018. School Disfrict
employee contributions to the pension plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were $236,972.

The School District is billed annually for its normal conlribution plus any accrued liability. The School Disfiict's
contributions, equal to the required confiibution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Normal
Contributions

-

61,320
71,677
76;849

Accrued
tiabititv

Contributory r.ong Term
Disability

Total
Liability
Paid by

, Dist*ct

468,671
458,229
453,934

Non

Life

2018
2017
2016

$$ 381,856
364,170
354,016

22,709
21,782
23,069

$ $ 2,786 $

Pension Liabilities, Pension Fapense, and Deferred Out'Iow of Resources and Defeted Intlows of Resources Related n
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflorvs of resources and d9leryd inflorvs of
resources related to pensions,'and pension e4pense, information about thefiducitq n* posi_tion ofthe PERS and additions

toldeductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS., For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognlzed wher due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Inyestn€nts are reported at fair valug.

At June 30, 2018, the School District reported a liability of $11 ,706,755 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2017, and the toJal pension liability used to calculate-the net pension

liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofJuly l,Z0l6.The School Disffict's proportion ofthe ofthe net pension

tiaUitity was based on a projection ofthe School District'ilong-term share of contributions tothe pension plan relative to the

projecled contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
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9. PENSTON PLANS (CONTTTYUED)

Public Employees! Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the School District recogrized pension expense of $564,824. At June 30, 2-018, the School
District reported a liability of $ 11,706,755 for its proportionate share ofthe PERS net pension liability and defened outflows
of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Defened
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

Chanees of xsumptions 2.358.508 2.349.861
Net Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investnents 79,715
Changes in proportion 906.01I
District contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 498.434

Total $ 3,212,31t s3.255.872

5498,434 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district contributions
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan measurement date is June 30,
2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recogrized in pension expense as follows:

For the year
ended:

Net Deferred
Outlows (Inflows)

ofResources
2019 $ 086.146)
2020 Q07)
2021 23.954
2022 (331.099)

2023

Total $ (541.995)
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9. PENSION PLATYS (CONTTNUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The amortization ofthe above other deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be oyer the following number ofyears:

Deferred Defened
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience

Year of Pension Plan Deferra!:
June 30,2014
June 30,2015 5.72 :
June 30, 2016 5.57

June 30, 2017 5.48

Changes of assumptions
vearffi:nirDeferrar:

6.44

June 30,2015 512
June 30, 2016 5.57

June 30,2017 - 5.48

Net Difference betwren projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investrnents
Year of Pension Plan Deferral: .

June 30, 2014 5.00

June30,20l5 - 5.00

June 30,2016 5.00 -
June 30,2017 5.00

Changes in proportion
Year of Pension Plan Deferral:

Jr.me 30,2014 6.44 6.44

June 30,2015 . 5.72 5.72

June 30,2016 5.57 5.57

Additional Information

Collective balances at June 30,2017 and20l6 are as follows:

6B0DAn 613012016

Collective deferred outflows of resources s 6-424A55.842 $ 8.685.338.380

Collective deferred inflows of resources $ 5.700.62s.981 $ 870.133.595

Collective net oension liabilitv s 23.278.40r.588 $ 29.617.131.759

School District' s Proportion .0502902007% .0s15799603%

Acturial assumptians - The total pension liability forthe June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial

valuation as of July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017.

)
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9. PENSION PLATYS (CONTT|IUED)

Public Employeesr Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods ur* the measwement:

Inflation rate:2,259/o
Sal4ry Increases:

Through 2025:1.6;54.15% based on age
Thereafter: 2.65.5.15%based on age

Invesftnent Rate of Return:7.00Yo

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortatrty Table for male and female

active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees,

mortality tables are set back 2years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements

in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP"20l4
projection scale. Post-retirement mortalify rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality
Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year

static projection based on mortality improvernent Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries

of former members provide for fuiure improvements in mortatity from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach

based on the plan actuar;r's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees

were based on the RP-2000 Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July l,2ll6valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1, 201t to June 30,2014.It is likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To

the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than

anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial

Long-Term hpected Rate of Return - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan

invesfinents (7.00% at June 30, 2Ol7) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the

Division of lnvesfinents and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of ffustees and the actuaries. The long term

expected rate of retum was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real

rates of refum (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 91h major asset

class. These ranges af€ combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates

of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for eaph major asset class included in PERS's taxget asset allocation as of June 30,2017 are summarized in the

following table: 
Long-Term Expected

Asset Class

Cash equivalents
U.S. Treasuries
lnvestrnent grade credit
Public higlt yield
Global diversifi ed credit
Credit oriented hedp funds

'DebJ related private eqlity
Debt related real estate
Private real assets

pguity related real estate

U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. developed marke* equity
Emerging markets equrty
Buyouts/vurfure capita!

Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
05.s1%
01.00%
01.87%
03.78%
06.82o/o,

07,10%
06.600/o

10t.63%
06.61%
11.83o/o

49.23o/o

08.190/o

09.00%
1r.64%
13.08o/o

05.00%
05.5070
03.00%
10.00%
02.50o/o

05.00%
01.00%
02.00o/o

01.00%
02.50%
06.25%
30.00%
ll50Ya
06.50%
08.25Vo
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9. PENSTON PLAITS (CONTTNUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount rate.The discount rate used to measure the State's total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 3O,20l7.This single
blended discount rate was based ol the long-teun expected rate of return on pension plan investnents of 7.00%, and a
municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30,2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash
flows used to detenuine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates 4nd that contributions from employers will be made based on the confiibution rate in the most recent fiscal
year. The state employer contributed 40% otthe u.tt *iulty determined contibutions and the local employers contibuted
100% of their. actuarially deiermined contibutions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position w4s
projected to be available-to make projected future benefit payments of cunent plan mem-bers through 2040. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of rehrm on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payrnents through2040, and the
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the net pension tiability to changes in the discotmt rate.l\e
following presents the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability measwed as of June 30,2017,
calculated using the discount rate of 5.00o/o, as well as what the School District's proportionate share of the net pension

tiability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (4.00o/o) or I percentage point
higher (6.00%) ttrat the curent rate:

Current
Discount Rate

School Districts's proportionate share ofthe
net pension Ilability

17o Decrease
(4.00%l (s.00%l

1olo Increase
(g.oo:/,) 

,:

$ 9,360,454$ 14,523,024 $ 11,706,755

Pension Planfiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.

Defi ned Co ntribution Retirem ent Pro gram (DCRPJ

The Defured Contribution Retirement Prograrn is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined conftibution pension plan which
wasestablishedonJuly l,2007,undertheprovisionsofChapter92,P.L.2O07 andChapter103,P.L.2007(N.J.S.A.43:l5C-
I et. seq), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P,L. 2008 and Chapter l, P.L. 2010. The Defined Contibution
Retirement Program Board oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the Divisions of Pensions and Benefits by
Prudential financiat. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered, defined
contribution retirement benefig along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are

established by N.J,S.A. 43:l5C-1 et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Ch4pter 92,.P.L.2007
and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007,planmembers are required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. In additionto the

employee confiibutions, the School District's contribution amounts for each pay period are transmitted to Prudential
pinaniial not later than the fifttr business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.
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9. PENSION PLANS (CONTII\IUED)

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) (Continued)

The School District's contributions, equal to the required confibution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Ftscal
Year

Total
Liabilitv

Paidby
School
District

20t8
20t7
20t6

16,263
I 1,100
14,196

16,263
1 1,100
14,796

$$

1 O. POST.RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Description of Plan -Plandescription and benefits provided P.L. 1987, c. 384 andP.L.1990, c.6 required Teach€rs' Pensions

and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Fublic Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement
medical benefits for those state employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability
retirement. P .L. 2,007 , c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefib through the TPAF
and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for retired state employees and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through
contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a

pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost atributable to P.L. 1992, c.l26,which provides employer paid health benefits to
members of PERS and the Altemate Benefit Prograrn (APB) who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service (GASB Cod. Sec. 2300.106(g). The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEIIBP) Act is found

in New Jersey Statutes Annotate4 Title 52, Article 17.25 et seq. Rules goveming the operation and adminisfration of the

progam are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code.

No assets are accrmrulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75.

Employees covered by benefit tenns. At June 30,2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

TPAF participant retirees:
As of June 30,2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post:retirement medical benefits, and the State

contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.
PERS participant retirees:

The State paid $233.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal
Year2017.

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has alegal obligation to make employer contributions to

OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA's proportionate share percentage determined under
paragraphs iqg *a 2$ throu$r}05 of GASBS No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the tEA did not recogrrize any portion
of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note

information is reported at the State's level and is not specific to the school district. Note that actual numbers will be published

in the NJ State'JCAFR (https://www.nj.gov/treasury/om,b/publications/archives.shunl)

Actuarial assumptions and other imputes - The total nonemployer OPEB liability as ofthe June 30, 2017 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 31,2}l6,which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. The total nonemployer OPEB liability
as ofJune 30,2n16 was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofJune 30,2016. The actuarial assumptions vary for each

plan member depending on the pension plan the member enrolled in.
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINIIED)

This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS

Salary Increases

Through2026

Thereafter

1.55 - 4.55Yo

based on years

of service

2.00 - 5.4svo

based on years

of service

2.15 - 4.l5Yo
based on age

3.ts - 5.t5vo
based on age

2.10 - 8.98Yo

based on age

3.lO - 9.98Yo

based on age

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female mortality

table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the ce,lrtral year using the MP-2017 scale'
posfietirement mortality rates were based on tfre np-ZOt+ Headcount-Weighted Healttry Annuitant Male/Temale mortality

table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2O17 scale. Disability mortality

was based on ttre np-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Maleffemale mortality table with fully generational improvement

projections ftom the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial exper-ienc9 studies for

the periods July l, iOtZ - I:ut 
" 

3l,z}ls,July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2013 andJuly 1, 2011 - June 30,2014 for TPAF, PFRS'

and PERS, respectively.

Heahh Cme Trend Assumptions - For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization @PO) medial benefits, this amount

initially is 5.9%oand decreaies to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits,

ttre trend rate is 4.5o/o. For health maintenance organization (Iilv1O) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5,9Yo and

decreases to a 5.0%o long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5%

decreasing to a S.14olong+erm trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement the trend rate is 5.0%.

The Medicare Advantage fend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate - The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and2.85Yo, respectively. This represent the

municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index,

which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higber.

Retirees'Share of Benefit Retated Costs - Pursuant to Chapter ?8, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postetirement

medical coverage-Who have less thanz} years of creditabl. ri*i.. on June 28, 2011 will be reqliredto pay a percentage of
the cost of their healttr care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit' 'Ihe
percentage of the premium for wf,ich the retireei wilt be responsible will be deterrrined based on the nitiree's annual

retirement benefit and level ofcoverage.
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Balance as ofJune 30;2l6Measurerent Date
Ctranges forthe years'

Service C-ost

[rterest
Ctranges of benefit terrns
Differences between e:rpected and actual eryerience

Changes in assurrptions
Cross Benefit Payments
Contributions from the Non-errployer
Contributions from the Member
Net Lrves tnrent Incorne
Adminsitrative Bpense

Net Changes

Lower Township School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2018

10. POST-RETTREMENT BENEFITS (CONTTNITED)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey -
TotalOPEB

U4bility
s 57,831,7U,1U

$ 2,391,878,884

1,699,441,736

Q,086,599,129)
(1,24?;4L2,566)

N/A
45,',l48,749

N/A
I N/A

Balrance atO6/3Ol2Ol7

s (4,191,942,326)

$ 53,63%841,858

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as

ofJune 30,2017.

Sensitivity of the total O4EB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB

liability of tfie Sate as of June ZO,iOtz for sihool board retirees, as well as whatthe State's total OPEB liability for school

board would be if it were calcuhtld using a discount rate that is l-percentage -point lower or lpercentage-point higfuer than

the currentdiscountrate: 
Current

17o Decrease DiscountRate 17o trncrease

(2.58 o/ol (3.58V"\ (4.58Vo )

Total OPEB Liabi[ty (School Retirees) $ 63,674,3622N $ 53,639,841,858 $ 45,680'3&,953

Sensitivity of the total O\EB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following presents the total

"""".pf"V.,i 
OpEB liability of the State-as of June 30,2707, as well as what the State's total OPEB liability would be if it

*rr, ,ul.ulut"d using healthcare cost tend rates that are l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage point higher than the

current healthcare cost trend rates:

17o Decrease

Ilealthcare
Cost Trend

Rates 1,oZ Increase

TotalOPEBliability (SchoolRetirees) 44,I13,5U,56O 53,639,U1'858 $ 662W,599457

OpEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Defened Inttgws o!41yurces Related to OPEB: For the year ended

June 30, 2017,theboard of eilucation ricogrized OPEB .*p"*. oi$+,Sqg,Sg7 determined by tfie State as the total OPEB

liability for benefits provided through a deined benefit OPEB plan thgt is not administered through a trust that meets the

criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75 and in which there is a special firnding situation.

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the school district's proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is zero, there is no

reoognition ofthe allocation ofproportionate share ofdeferred outflows ofresources and defened inflows ofresources.
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10. PoST-RETTREMENT BENEFTTS (CONTINITED)

At June 30,2Ol7,ttre State reported deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to retired school

employee's OPEb from the following sources:

06t30117

Collective deferred outflows of resources $ 99,843,255

Collective deferred inflows of resources 6.443.612"287

Collective net OPEB liability (Non-Employer-
State ofNew Jersev) 53,639,841,858

State's portion of the net liability that
was associated District 88.543.533

State's portion of the net liability that
was associated with the School District as a percentage

of the collective net OPEB liability o.t7%

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflovn of
Resources

Changes in proportion s 9.843,255 $ 99.8/.3,2s5

Changes of as sunqrtions 6,343,769,032

Total s 99.843.255 s 6.443.612287

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employee's

OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Forthe year
ended:

2018 $ Q42"830.WT)
2019 042,830;@7)
2020 (742,830,W7)

2021 042.830.On\
2022 G42830,c97)

Therafter (2629,6r8,s47)

Total s rcs$.769.032)

11. ON-BEIIALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2018, the School Distict has recopized as revenues and expenditures on-behalf payments

made by ttre state for normal retirement costs, post-retirement medical costs an{ long Jery dit"litiU h:Y".": related to

TpAF, i" tft" fut a shtements. The amounts reCogrrized as revenues and expenditures in the firnd fmancial statements for

nor1nj costs, poit-retirement medical costs and long term disability insurance were_ $1,671 ,496, $1,079,584, and $2,092'

.op".ti*t>. In addition, 8847,440 on-behalf payments were made by the state for the employer's share of social security

contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

Detailed information about the pension plan's sensitivity of the collective net pe,nsion liability to olr14ges in the discount rate

is available in the separately isJued Staie of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits financial report.
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12. RISKMANAGEMENT

Property and Liability Insurance - The Disfiict is a member of the Atlantic and Cape May Counties Association of School

Business Officials Joint Insurance Fund (ACCASBOJIF), a public entity risk pool curently operatin€ as a common risk
management and insurance program. The Disfiict pays an actuarial determined annual assessment to ACCASBOIIF for its

insurance coverage. Supplernental assessments may be levied to supplement the fund.

The District has not beennotified of any supplemental assessments.

In addition, the Distict carries commercial inswance for all other risks of loss, accident insurance, and public official surety

bonds. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three

fiscal years. The District is self-insured for employee health and prescription coverage.

A complete schedule ofinsurance coverage can be found in the "Statistical Section" ofthis report

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemploynent

Compensation Insur-anie under the uBusiness Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the Disfiict is required to reol9urse

the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the

State. The District is billed quartedy for amounts due to the State.

The following is a summary of District confiibutions, employee contributions, reimbursements to thp State for benefits paid

and the ending balance of the District's expendable tust fund for the current and prior four years:

Flscal
Year

District
Contributions

f,rnployee

Contributions

32,542
312t3
53,030

vA87
38,978

Interest
Amount

Reimhrrsed
Ending
Balance

2018
20r7
2016
20t5
2014

40,000

40,000
33,175
40,000
9,U9

612M
54,041

71,985
9&651
61,u25

14989
111,502

94,153

79,880
94,000

$$$ $ $t49
177

53

4
5l

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal

R"n"no" Code Section 403(b). 'itre plans, available to all permanent Sohool Disfiict employees, permit participanls to.defer

a portion of their current salary to iirtor" y"*s. Participation in the plans is optional. The deferred clmneryation t1 not

u*itutt" to the participants until termination, retirement death, or an unforeseeable emergency occurs. The plan assets are

held in trust fof the binefit of the employee and are administered by a thi.d patry therefore they are not reflected on the

financial statements ofthe School District.

14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School Disfiict accounts for compensated absences (e;g. unused vacation" sick leave) * alt.t"a by Governmental

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A tiability for

compensaied absences attributable to services alriady rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the

confiol of the employer and employee is accrued as employees eam the rights to the benefits.

School District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the School District's

persorurel policy. 
-Uion 

termtation, emplJyees are paid for accrued vacation. The School District's policy perrnits

employees^to u""u1autut"a unused sick lelve and carry forward the full amount to subsequent yearst Upon retirement

"-ptoy"6 
shall be paid by the School District for the unused sick leave in accordance with the School Disfict's agreements

with the various employee unions.
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14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrued to the employees. As

of June 30, 2018, the liability for compensated absences in the governmental activities and proprietary fund types was

$2, I 36,814 and $97,902,respectively.

15. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AI\D PAYABLES

Interfund receivables/payables are recorded to cover temporary cash shortages and/or timing {iff-efe1cel in the respective

funds. There are no interfund balances that are not expected to be repaid by June 30, 201 8. The following interfund balances

were recorded on the various balance sheets as ofJune 30, 2018:

trbnd
Interfunds
ReceiraHe

-

$ 252,489
33

Interfunds
Payable

C.reneral

SpecialRevenue
Capital Projects
Debt Service Fund
Proprietary Fund
Fiduciary Fund

Total

22L,258

15

31.231

$ 252537 $ ZSZ,SSI

--

33

15

$

16. CONTINGENCIES

Thi School District participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received

from other govemmental units. Expenditures financed by grants ar- subject to audit by th9 lnnrgn{ate 
gantol government'

If expenditrires are disallowed due io noncompliance with grant program regulations, the School Disfiict may be required to

reimburse the grantor government.

At June 30, 2018, significant amounts ofgrant expenditures have not been audited by the granting agency, ltt qt School

Disfiict believes that disallowed expenditries discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on any

of the individual funds or the overall financial position of the School District.

17. TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 1 ta* abatement is an agreement between a

lovernment and an individual or entity in which the govemme_nt promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entlty

iromises to subsequently tdke a specific action that contribuies to economic development or otherwise benefits the

iovernment or its citi"ens. School dl*icts are not authgrized by New J-ersey statute to entel lnto 
tax a.batement agreements.

Flo*ru"r, the county or municipality in which the school disfiict is situated may have entered into ta:< abatement agreements,

and that potential must be disciosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement

ugr"r1n"ot , those agreements will not directly affe-ct the school district's local tax revenue because N'J.S.A. 54:4'75 and

f.tf.S.a. 54:4-76 r"{uir" that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped Aom other taxpayers and remitted to the

school district.

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their ml+rmum tax levy

using the required local share provisions at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting fu. S: muni. cipllitf o1

coo,ity having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of

,"qri*a locaishare performed by the New Jersey Departrrent of Education based upon district propelty value and wealth.
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17. TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

The Township of Lower (Municipality) provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey State Statutes.

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1et seq. sets forttr the criteria and mechanism by which properly taxes can and are abated. The exemptions
provided by the Municipality are for affordable housing and other permitted purposes. Taxes abaled include municipal, local
school, and corrnty taxes.

The municipality recognized revenue of $104,223 from the annual service charge in lieu of payment of taxes in 2017. The
assessed nuiur on these tax exemption properties amounted to $12,250,000 whiih would have iesulted n 2Ol7 taxes billed
in full of $215,968. A portion of the $111,745 abatement would have been allocated to the Disftict.

18. DEFICIT UNASSIGNED FIIIID BALANCE

The School Disfiict has a deficit unassigred fund balance of $343,952 in the General Fund and $35,104 in the Special

Revenue Fund as of June 30, 201 8 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S. A. 18A:2244.2 provides

that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, school districts must record

the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenues, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year.

The statute provides legal authority for school districts to rccognizn this revenue in the current budget year. For

intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability)
should be in symmefiry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recogtizes a liability. Since the

State is recording the June state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the School District cannot rccognizn the June

state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference

of recording the June state aid payments, the general and special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that

the School District is facing financial diffrculties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigred general fund balance that is reported as a direct result fiom a

delay in the June payrrents of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute

and regulation noi in need of corective action. The School District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of 5343,952

in thrc General Fund and $35,104 in the Special Revenue Fund is equal to or less than the June state aid payments.

19. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2018, a deficit of $14,760,486 existed in the Unrestricted Net Position of the Governmental Activities. A
reconciliation of Unreserved Fund Balance reported on E'xhibit B-1 to Unrestricted Net Positio:r reported on Exhibited A-1

as follows:

Balances, June 30, 2018:
Fund Balance (Deficit)
(B<clusive ofCapitalFrojects and Debt Service Funds):
Fund Balance - Unassigned $ Q43,952)
Liabilies:

Accrued hrterest Payable (30,970)

Net Pension Differences (12,248,750)

C.ompensated Absences (2,136,81:4)

Unrestricted Net Pos ition @eficit) $ (14,7ffi,486)

20. FTII\D BALANCES

RESTNCTED

As stated in Note l, the restrictetl fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such

restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the following: (a) extemally imposed by creditors,

grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other goveflments; or (b) imposed by law thro-ugh constitutional provisions

or enabling legislation. Specific restrictions of the School District's fund balance are summarized as follows:
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20. FUND BALANCES (Continued)

General Fund:

Excess Surplus - In accordance with N.J.SA. l8A:7F-7, as amended, the designation of resfricted fund balance -

excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educatioaal
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restrict general fund,
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 ifthey did not appropriate a required ni,inimum amount as budgeted

fund balance in their subsequent years'budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2018 is $1,008,403 presented

on the budgetary basis ofaccounting @xhibit C-1). Additionally, $575$89 of excess firnd balance generated during
rhe2016-2017 fiscal yearhas been restricted and designated for utilization in the 2018-2019 budget.

Capital Reserve - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the oapital reserye account is $1,500,000.

Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2018, the balance in the maintenance reserye account is

$1,299,137 . Of this amount $300,000 has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year

ending Jqne 3l,20l9.These funds are restricted forthe required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with
the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9) as amended byP.L.2004,
c.73 (S1701)

ASSIGNED

As stated in Note 1, the assigned frnd balance classification includes amounts that are consfiained by the School District's

intenttobeused for specific purposes, but are neitherrostricted nor committed. Specific assignments ofthe School Disffict's
firnd balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School District has appropriated and included as an

anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, $18,513.

Other Purposes - At June 30, 2018 the School District hu $52,292 of encumbrances outstanding for purchase

orders and contracts signed by the School Distict, but not completed, as of the close ofthe fiscal year.

Debt Service Fund:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School District has appropriated and included as an

anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, $10,017.

UNASSIGNED

As stated in Note l; the unassiped fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted,

committe4 or assigned to specific purposes. The School District's unassigned fund balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance of the general fund was a deficit of $343,952,thus resulting in

the fund balance classification of unassiped. The deficit is a result of the delay in the recording of the payment of
state aid until the following fiscal year (Sle Not6 18).

Special Revenue Fund - As of June 30, 2018, the fund balance of the special revenue fund was a deficit of $35,104,

ttius resulting in the fund balance classification of unassigned. The deficit is a result of the delay in the recording of
the paymenl of state aid until the following fiscal year (See Note l8).

Capital Projects - As of June 30, 2018, $166,128 of capital fund balance was unassigned.

Debt Service - As of June 30, 2018, $220 of debt service fund balance was unassigned.
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LOWER TON'NSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
Fiscdl Year Ended June 30,2OlB

Original

$ 16,812,338 $ $ 16,812,338

1,500
25,000

16,838,838

$ 16,812,338
63,462

5,645
1,387

ib7,4il

17,150.286

c-1

Variance
Final to
Actual

$
63,402
5,645

(113)

242,4U

311.448

FinalBudget
TransGIs

State sources:
School choice aid 7gO,24A
Special education aid 888,970
Equalization aid 5,202,298
Security aid 4461'7A
Adjustment aid 2,090,412
Transportation aid 264,271
PARCC Readiness Aid 16,460
P€r Pupil crcu,ft Aid 16,460
Professional Leaming CommunjtyAid 1S,BO0
Homeless Tuition Aid
ExtraordinaryAid
Lead testing 6r sc*rools aid
Additional Non Public Tnanspoftation Aid
On-behalf TPAF pension confibutions (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Medical (non-budgeted)
On-behar TPAF LTDI (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-budgeteg_

REVEilUES:
Local sources:

Local bx levy
Tuition - Ofter LEAS
Transportation
lnterest eamed on mainbnan@ reserve
Unresticted miscellaneous revenue

Total local sources

Total stab sources

Federal.sources:
Special Education Medicaid tnitiative (SEMI)

Total ftderal sources

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GURREI.IT EXPENSE:

Regular fuograms - lnstruc.tion:
Salaries of bachers

Preschool
Kindergarten
Grades 1€
GEdes 6€

Total lnsbudion

Regular Programs - Home lnstuc{ion:
Salaries ofteachers
Otherpurcfiased seM@s

Total Home lnstruction

Regular Prcgrams - Undistributed lnstruction:
Ofter salariee for instuc{ion
Purchased technical seMces
O$er purchased seryices
General supplies
Terdooks
Otherobjects

Total Undistributed lnstruc.tion

35,536 35,536

10. 177,147 (168,007) 10.009.140

49.366 49,366

49.366 49,366

27,065,351 {168.007) ,344

1,500

____?qggg_

16,838.838

271,O00
902,100

5,599,100

756,248
888,970

5,202,298
446,'178

1,826,869
7U,n1

16,460
16,460
15,850

796.,248
888,970

5,202,258
446,178

1,826,869
764,271

16,460
16,460
15,850
32,736.
64,075

6,923
15,370

1,671,496
1,079,584

2,O92
u7,440

(203,543)

32,736
28,539
6,923

15,370
1,671,496
1,075,584

2,092
u7,440

3,684,180

69.569 20,203

20.20369.569

3.175 4,015,831

6,000
275,000

(43e,200)
30,125

277,O00
1,177,100
5,159,900

832,125

273,075
1,105,O24
5,116,211

832,113

3t925
72,076
43,689
...12

7 {128.075} 7,448.125 7 115,702

250250
3,500 (125) 3,375

3.750 (1251 3.625

2U

--_
2A4

3.111
250

3,361

830,700
56,000

106,800
400,604
100,000

9.800

1,503,904

9,081:854

(25,000)
(12,505)
16,205
72,200

(19,000)
600

805,700
43,495

123,005
472,8U

81,000
10,400

746,393
30,275
93,869

455,688
76,161
10.339

59,307
13,216
29,136
17,116
4,839

61

32,500 1,536,4(X

e,geo,t54

1.4',t2.729 123,675

246.738
Total - Regular Prcgrams - lnstruction

See Managemenfs Discussion and Anallrsis section of this report br explanation of signiticant budget variances, original and final.

8,739,416

7L
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(Coofrnued tom pr'lor pagel

Special Educ lnstrudion: Leaming/lang. Disabilities
Salaries of bachers
Other salaries br instruction
General Supplies

Total Leaming/l-ang. Disabilities

Special Educ lnshlction: Res. Room/Res. Center
Salaries of teachers
General supdies

Totral Resource Room/Resource Center

Special Educ lnstuction: Pre-K Disabilities Part-time
Salaries ofteachers

Total Pre-K Disabilities Part-time

Special Educ lnstruc.tion: Home lnstruction
Salaries of teacfiers

Total Homei{nsbuction

Total Special Education - lnshuction

Beforcr/afier scfrool programs - lnskuction
Salaries of teachers

Total Before/after school - lnstruction

Bilingual Education - lnstruction
Salaries of bachers.
General supplies

Total Bilingual Education - lnstruction

Undisfibuted Expenditures - lnstruction
Tuition to other LEAs wfin state/regular
Tuition b CSSD & reg. day sclrools
Tuition to priv. scfr. ficr the handicapped in staG

Total Undistributed Expenditures - lnsffuction

Undistributed E)eenditures - Attendance & Social Work
Salaries
Purchased professional and technical services
Supplies and materials

Total Undistributed E&enditures - Attendance & Soc.

Undisbibuted Expenditures - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased professional and technical services
Other purchased services (400-500)
Supplies and materials

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Com parison Schedule

General Fund
Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original
Budqet

$ 408,300
104,300

6,062

$ (24,000) $

1,026,000
6,000

1,032,000

518,662 (24,000) 494,662 391,359

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budset Ac'tual

Variance
Final to
Actual

c-l

35,396
u,548

3.359

384,300
104,300

6,062

348,904
39,752
2,703

$ $

103,303

1,026,000
6,000

962,718
3.480

63;282
2.520

966,198 65,802

70,500 35,000

35,000 105.500

10s,500 101,871 3.629

70,500 't01,871 3,629

25,000 (10.800) 14.200 14.200

25.000 (10.800) 14.200 14,200

1,646,162

50,000

200 1.646.362 1,459,428

96,500

186,934

146,500 138,105 8,395

50,000 96,500 138,105 8,395

101,000
6.750

1,000

107,750 1,000

102,000
6,750

101,449
491 6.259

551

108,7s0 101,940 6,810

100,000
715,000

(3,800)
(54,100)
32,900

96,200
660,900

32.900

27,824
642,422
32.860

68,376
18,478

40

5.000 790,000 703,106 86,894

200

30,700
9,900

40.800

(2,000) 28,700
9,900

200

21,361
9,693

55

7,339
207
145

(2,000) 38,800 31.109 7,691

467,100
23,000
3,250

15,500
1,270

e.2951

467.100
23,000
4,520

13,205

460,358
20,306
2,892

12,785

6,742
2,694
1,628
4n

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Svcs. (1.025) 507.825

See Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis seciion of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

496,341 't1,4U
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c-l
LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended Junb 30, 2018

(Conffnued frcm prior page)

Undist. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT & Related Services
Salaries
Purchased professional - educ services
Supplies and materials

Undist Expend. - Child Study Teams
Salaries of other probssional staff
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants
Purchased probssional - educ services
Other purchased probssional - tech seMces
Other purchased servies (400-500)
Misc. purchased services (400-500)
Supplies and materials
Otherobjecb

Total Undst. Expend. - Child Study Teams

Undist. Expend. - lmprovement of lnstr- SeMces
Salaries of supervisor..of instuction
Salaries of Secr and Clerical Assist.
Oher purcfiased services (40&500)
Suppliesand materials
Otherobjecb

Total Undst. Expend. - lmprovement of lnstr. Services

Undist Frpend. - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Library
Salaries
Other purchased services (400-500)
Supplies and materials
Oherobjecb

Original
Budget

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget

$ 431,675
2,760

765

Actual

Variance
Final to
Actual

$ 431,900
1,500
1,000

$ (225)
1,260
(235)

$ s62,605
2,748

544

69,070
12

221

$

Total Undst. Epend. - Speech, OT, PT & Related Services 434,400

Undist. Erpend. - Guidance
Salades of other professional staff
Supplies and materials
Other objec*s

Tohl Undst. Expend. - Guidance 100

352,400 (10,000) 342,400

800

395

435,200 365;897 69,303

3,968
130
30

765895
30

338,432
500
200 (170)

@.7751 u3,325 339,197 4,128

601,100
172,700
250,000
6s,000

5,750
2,000

10,000
1,200

(30,000)
(8,950)

65,150
77,s00
(5,750)
6,250
(500)

1,400

1.400

571,100
163,750
3't5,150
142,s00

8,250
9,500
1,200

528,508
143,590
i99,214
118,411

42,592
20,160

115,436
24,089

5,124
9,496

525

3,126
4

675

1,107,750 103,700 1.211,450 1.005.368

110,600
33,091

500
1,000
1,000

112,000
33,091

500
1,000
1,000

111,883

445,160

32,211

117
33,091

453
863

f,ooo

47
137

146,191 147,591 112,67 35,524

.141,600

800
35,000
3.700

9,000 450,600
800

35,000
3.700

5,440
800

2,789
3.700

Total Undst. Eryend. - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Library 481,100

Undist. E eend. - lnstructional Staff Training Services
Salaries of supeMsor of instruction
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants
OOi6r salaries'
Purchased prcfessional - educ services
Other purcfiased seMes
Supplies and materials
Other objects

Total Undst. Expend. - lnstructional Straff Training Svcs.

9,000 490.100 477,371 12.729

77,509
88,400
4,800
7.500
1,500
3,000

12,500

33,900

1,200
(1,500)
't,000
(7oo)

111,409
88,400

6,000
6,000
2,500
2,300

12,500

111,267
81,54V
6,000
5,003

591
1,345
4.082

6,853
142

997
1,909

9s5
8,418

33,900 229J09

See Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis section of this report br explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

195,209 209,835 19,274
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c-t
LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparlson Schedule
General Fund

Fiscal Ygar Ended June 30, 2018

Original(Con0nu€d ftom pdor page)

Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. General Admin.
Sahries
Legal seMces
Audit fees
Oher purchased prcfessional services
Communications / telephone
Other purchased services
General supplies
BOE in-house haining/meeting supplies
Miscellaneous oeenditures
BOE membership duesand fees

Total Undst. Expend. - Supp. Serv. Generat Admin.

Undist. Experd. - Supp. Serv. School Admin.
Salaries of principals/assist principals
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistahts
Purchased prcfessional and technical services
Other purchased seMces (400-500)
Supplies and matedals
9trer objects

Total Undst E)eend. - Supp; Serv. School Admin.

Undist. Erpend. - Central SeMces
Salaries
Purchased professional services
Miscellaneous purchased seMces
Supplies and materlals
Miscellaneous ogenditures

Total Undst. Expend. . Central Services

Undist Expend. - Required Maint. Safi. Facitities
Salaries
Gleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Supplies and materials
Olherobjects

Total Undst Epend. - Requlred Maint. Sdl. Facitities

Undist Expend. - Cusbdial Services
Salaries
Salaries of Non-tnsti.lctional Aides
Purcfrased professional & tech. services
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services
Rental of hnd & buildings other than tease
Lease purchase payments - energy savings impi prog
Oher purchased property serviceo
lnsurane
Travel
Miscelhneous purchased seMces
General supplies
Energy (electicity)
Energy (natural gas)
Otherobjecb

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budoet Actjal

Variance
Final to
Actual

$ 215,700
35,000
24,OOO

16,000
47,500
88,9(x)
4,300
2,000
4,500

16.300

$ 3,000

(3,070)

19;900

47,600
20,000

s 218,700
35,000
24,O00
16,000
44,430
89,070
4,300
2,O00

24,400
16,300

218,505
27,498
23,300
12,311
24,4U
79,421

795
1,345
3,739

'12,523

$ $ 195
7,502

700
3,689

19,936
9,649
3,505

655
20,661

3.777

170

4U,2@ 20,000 474,200 403,931 70.269

338,800
400,300

3,150
12,000
9,750
5,500

769,500

307,100
26,700
8,000
8,000
3,000

386,400
420,300

3;150
12,000
9,750
5.500

360,425
393,477

1,355
5,390
9,068
3,280

25,975
26,823

't,795
6,610

682
2,220

67,600 837.100 64,105

(4,500)
1,235
5,765

19,500

302,600
27,935
13,765
8,000

22.509

260,265
27,870
10,980
6,824
3,474

42,335
65

2185
1,176

19.026

352,800 22,O00 374,800 309,413 65;387

341,000
170,500
181,474
436.363

(41,500)
(3e,200)
't4,000

299;500
131,300
195,474
436,363

299,449
117,892
187,303

51

13,408
8,171

24,7401.623

1.129.s37 (66.700) 1.062.637 1,016,267 46.370

771,200
?29,700

11,000
1,000
1,200

50,000
140,000

28,000
125,097
295,000
100,000

900

(11,000)
86,950
20,700

u,812
(3,700)

(13,0@)
1;000

(1,000)

19,788
14,150

760,200
316,650
31,700

1,000
1;2oo

34"812
46,300

127,OOO

1,000
27,000

125,097
314,788
114,150

900

745,638
316,615

4,167
80

1,157
34,812
46,217

127,000

14,562
35

27,533
940
43

83

1,000
10,147
31,960
4,38ir
5,502

900

16,853
93,137

310,408
108,648

Total Undst E<pend. - Custodial Services 1.753.097 700 1,901.757 't,804Ji2

See Management's DiscxJssion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget varlances; original and final.

97,085
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTR]CT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20ig

Original Budget
(Contlnued from prlor p.gel

Undist Elpend. - Care & Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries
Purchased professional & tech. seMces
cleaning, repair and maintenan@ servi@s
General supplies

Total Undst Expend. - Care & Upkeep of Grouncls

Undist Expend. - Security
Salades
Cleaning, repair and maintenan@ services
General supplies

Tortal Undst. Expend. - Security

Total Undst Expend. - Oper. & Maint of plant Services

Final

c-'t

Variance
Final tc
Acdual

$ 12,000
7,000
3,150
9,833

$ 12,000
7,000
3,150

15,350

37_500

$ $ 12,000 $ -
7.000
3,150

'!5,350 5,517

37.500 5.517 31.983

291,500
1,300

32.805

(20,000)

83.500

63.500

271,ilo
1,300

116.305

257,004
722

14,496
578

14.U7 1.958

105 372,073

3,198.569

17,032

192,470145,500 3,391,039

Undist. Erpend. - Student Transportation Services
Salaries br pupil trans. (bet home & sch) - regular
Salaries for pupil hans. (bet home & sch) - special
Salades fur pupil trans. (other thin bet home & sch)
Rental payments - school buses
Conf. serv. - (Sp. Ed Stds) - Joint Agreements
Contr. serv. - Aide in lieu pymts- Chafter Schools
Conh. serv. - Aide in lieu pymF. Nonpublic Schools
Miscellaneous purchased services - hansportation
General Supplies
Transportation supplies
Otherobjeds

727,300
82,7A0
19,000
3,000

150,000
40,000
40,000
44,000

123,000
148,000

3,000

14,000
(15,000)

12,900
23,500

(22,500)
(55,007)

741,300
67,700
19,000
3,000

150,000
40,000
52,900
67,500

100,500
92,993

3.000

677,107
32,901

3,376
2,954

110,778
38,989
22,073
50,136
67,167
88,243

60

64,193
34,7g9
15,624

46
39,222

1,011
30,827
17,364
33,333
4,750
2.940

Total Undst. Expend. - StudentTransportation Services 1,38O,OO0

Unallocabd Benefib - Employee Benefib
Social security contributions
Other retirement contributions - PERS
Other retirement conbibutions - Regular
Unemployment compensation
Workers'compensation
Health benefib
Tuition reimbuEement
Ofteremployee benefts
Sick payment to retirecuterminated employees

Total Unallocated Benefib - Employee BenefiF 6,771.190

107) .893 1,093,784 244,109

494,190
515,000

15,000
40,000

183,000
5,149,000

45,000
330,000

(5e,000)
(36,500)

5,500

(1,000)
(504,500)

(5,000)
106,500

435,190
478,500

20,500
40,000

182,000
4,64r'.,500

40,000
436,500

392,738
477,873
20,4&
40,000

180,471
3,771,138

40,000
406,710

42,452

1,529
873,362

29,790

(1,671,496)
(1,079,584)

(2i092)
rc47.440\

627
14

190 16 !u7,774

On-behalf TPAF pension (non-budgeted)
On-tlehalf TPAF medical (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF LTD| (non{udgebd)
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-budgeteo!)__

Total Undistibuted Fr<penditures - TpAF

1,671,496
1,079,584

2,092

2l
Total Undistibuted Expenditures

Total General Cunent Expense

17.055,629

27,U1,395

(170,007)

fi68.007)

(1,563.389)

27,773.388 n.1 14.5121

See Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budget
Transfers

Final
Budget Actual

c.'l

Variance
Final to

, Actual
(Corilinued fiom prior pagei

EXPENDlTURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Equipment

Undist. Exp - req. maint - school facilities
Undist. Exp - security

School Buses - Regular

Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition and Construction SeMces:
Assessment on SDA Funding

Tohl Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Asseb acquired under capital leases (non-budgeted):
Facilities Acquisition and Construc'tion Services:

Energy Savjng lmprovement Program

Total assets acquired under capital leases

Tohl Capital Ouflay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures:

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of Capital Lease

Total Othqr Financing Sources

E:<cess (Deficiency) ofRevenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation of Fund Balance:
Restricted Fund Balance:

Reserved Excess Surplus - Designated br Subsequent
Years Elpenditures

Reserve br b(cess Surplus
Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve

Assigned Fund Balance
Year-end Encumbrances
Designated for Subsequent Years Expendifures

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconciliation on Goremmental Fund Statements (GAAP):
Less: State Aid Payment not Recognized on GAAP Basis

Fund Balance per Govemment Fund (GAAP)

Original
Budqet

$ 10,000
25,000

355.000

34,500
(25,000)

(9.500)

44,500

345,500

44,473

u1,352

$ $ $ $

390,000 385,825

27

148

4.175390,000

6,346 6,346 6,346

6,346 6,346 6,346

189e,000

1.899,000

(1.899.000)

(1.899.000)

396,346 396,346 2,291,171 (1,8%,825)

28,337,741 . {168,007) 28,169,7U 31,179,0V1 (3,009,337)

(.272.3901 (1.272.3901 (265,8e6) 1.006.494

1,899,000 1,899,000

1.899.000 1.899.000

(1,272,390) 1,633,104 2,905,494

3,377,828 3,377,828

(1,272,3W1

3,377,828

_s_ 491439_ $ $ 2,105,438 $ 5,010,932 s2

$ 575,089
1,008,403
1,500,000
1,299,137

52,292
18,513

557.498
5,010,932

(901,450)

$ 4,109,482

See Managernenfs Discussion and Analysis section ofthis report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.
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c-2

REVENUES:
Local sources
State sources
Federal soures

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salaries of teachers
Tuition
General supplies

Total instruc{ion

Support services:
Salaries of program director
Personal services+mployee benefits
Travel
Supplies and Materials
Purchased prof. and educational services

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and construction services:
lnstruc-tional equipment
Non-instrudional equipment

Total facilities acq. and const. services

Transbr to charter schools

Total expenditures

Total outflows

Excess (Qeficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses)

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original Budget
Transferc

$ $ 1,778

'

1,778

351,036
1120263

1,471,299

Final
Budget Actual

Final to
Ac{ual

$ 't,778
351,036

1,120,263

1,473i077

$ 1,778
351,036

1,093,222

$

27,o/.',l

1,446.036 27,041

675,529
499,751
54,575

1,229,85s

(78,612)

1,781

(76,831)

596,917
499,751

56,356

591,480
499,751

5,437

1.'l 1,147 ,587 5.437

23,000
166,314

10,328
21,802
20,000

23,000
244,923

10,328
21;802
20,000

22,313
244,870

8,466
8,847

13.953

687
53

1,862
12,955
6,047

78,609

1.444 78,609 053 298,449 21.6M

1,471,299 1,778 1,473.077

1 .299 1,778 1.473.077

$- $

1,/l4q,$6

1,446,036

27,041

27.M1

$ $ $
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c-3
Lower Township School District

Notes to Requircd Supplementary lnformation
Budgetary Comparison

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of rc$ources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"

from the budgetary comparison schedules
Difference - budget to GMP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in current
year, previously recognized for budgetary puryoses.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subseqqent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds.

General
Fund

$ 30,934,707

Speclal
Revenue

Fund

$ 30,913,175 $ 1,446,036

111,715

922,982 33,014

(901.450) (35,104)

$1

Uses/outf lows of resou nces
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from

the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP

Encumbranges for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received is reported in the year the oder is placed for budgetary
purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for financial
reporting purposes.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

31,179,071 1,446,036

111,715

$ 31,179,071 $ 1,ss7,7s1
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L-1
LOt IER TOVvtrtSHlp SCHOOL OISTRIGT
.Requlred Supplomentary lnformation

Schedule of the Distdcfs pn portionate Share of tho Net pemlon Lhbllity
Publlc Employees Re0rcment Systom

Last Fhro Flscal years

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016

June 30, June 30,

2014Disticfs propodion ofthe net pension
liability (asset)

Disfiicfs ploportionatB shar€ oflhe n€t
pensior liability (asset)

DFtric-f s covercd-€mployee payroll

Dlstricfs proporfonate sharc ofthe net
pension liabillty (ess€t) as a percentage
of b cotqed-emplwo payroll

Plan fdudary net posittbn a6 a percentag€
of fr|e totalp€nsion liability

2015

0.05/J2902007% 0.001s799603% 0.0s27994091% 0.0580173s06% 0.0s861rr59ro96

$ 11,706,755

3;185,716

367./A%

36.78%

15,276,505

3,374,U4

rt52.66%

31.2OVo

11,852,427

3,423,955

346.16%

8.21%

10,862,442

3,510,.147

309.43%

42.74Vo

11,202,414

3,.182,586

n1.il%

42:.74%

s $ $ s

Thls scftedulo does not contsin ten years of infomalioo as
GASB 68 uras implemonted during tle fscal year
ended June 30.2015.
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L-2
LOWER IOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Requlr€d Supplementary lnfomation
Schedule of the District3 Contdbutions
Public Employees Retr€mont System

Last Flve Fiscal Years

.June 30,

2014
June 30,

2417
&ne 30,

2016
JuhE 30,

mI5
June 30,

2014.

Contrae'tually r€quired contribution

Contributions in relalion to ths contraclually
rcquired confibutions

Conlribution de{icisncy (excess)

Distric{s covered-€mployee payroll

Contributions as a percenlage of
covered-€mployse payroll

$ 498,434 $ 408,671 S ,158,229 $ 453,934 $ 478,287

(498.434) (468,671) |/,se,zel (453,934) (478,2871

s $-

-

$ $ $

This sch€dule doss not contain len years ot informatlon as
GASB 68 $as implemented during lhe fiscal year

ended Juno 30,2015.

3,185,716

15.A5%

3,374,U4

13.89%

3,423,955

13.38%

3,510,447

12.g3Yo

3,482,586

13.73fs

8L



L-t
LOWER TOVVIISHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Roqulr{'d Supplementary lnformation
Schedulo oflhe Dietdcfs Proportlonato Shar€ of tho Net Ponslon Llability

TeachelE Penslon and Annulty Fund
LastFlw FlEcal Year€

June 30,

2018
June 30,

2017
June 30,

2014
June 30,

2Q15

June 30,

2014

Disfricts proportion of the nel pengion

liabilily (a$et)

Distric{s pmportion?te share of lhe net
pension liabilliy (asset)

Stato's proportionate shar€ of fle net pension liability (asset)

associated wih the Dlstid

Total

Dislrffi s covered-employee payroll

Distic.fs p.oporlionate share ofthe net
pension liabilny (ass9.0 as a percenlage

of its coverd-€mplqee payroll

Plan tiduciary net posit'on as a percentage

. of lhetotalpensionliabjlity

This schedule doos not contaln ten yeaB qf lnformalion a8

GASB o8 was implemoilld during ho fiacal lBar
ended June 30,2015.

o|112u63245% 0.1075989527% 0.1160€31742% 0.1192310551% O.11923147',t7$o

$ $ $ $ $

$ 75,832,790 $ U,U4j87 $ 73,356,382 $ 63,725,1't8 $ ,.60,258,648

$ 7s,E82,79q $ 84,644.187 $ 73,356,882 _!____99J?111!-

11,591Jl9 11,159,801 11,359,918 11,300,558 11,210,871

0.00|6 0.00% 0.00% 0.0096 0.0096

25.41% 22.33% 28.71% 3it.64% 33.0496

$

82



LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DTSTRICT

Required Supplementary lnformation
Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated with the District

and Ghanges in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Public Employee's Retirement System and Teacherc'Pension and Annuity Fund

Gurrcnt FiscalYear

June 30,

2018

Stiate's proportion of the net OPEB liabili$ (asset)

associated with the District

M-{

0.17o/o

$ 88,543,533

$ 88,543,533

0.00%

June 30,

2018

3,046,909

2,803,118
(11,620,005)

75,518

(7,745,316)

96,288,849

$ 88,543,533

14,777,435

Districts proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

associated with the District

Totalproportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset)

associated with the District

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

lnterest

Changes of assumptions and other inputs

Member Contributions

Benefit payments

Net Change in total OPEB LiabilitY

Total OPEB Liability - beginning

Total OPEB Liability -ending

Districf s covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

$

$

$

$

This schedule does not contain ten years of information as

GASB 75 was implemented during the fiscal year

ended June 30,2018.
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Lower Township School District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

1. Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (fPAF")

Changes of beneJit term: The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides

retfuement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical

benefits, which vest aftrlr 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are

always fully vested for their own confributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for

2Yo of relajed interest earned on the contibutions. In the case of death before retiremenL rtembers'

beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Changes of assunptions.' Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the

experience of TPAF members reflecting mortalrty improvement on a generational basis based on a60-yer
average ofSocial Security data from 1953 to2013.

2. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Changes of bene/it term: The vesting and benefit provisions axe set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides

retirement, death and disability benefits, All benefits vest after ten yeaxs of service, except for medical

benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

Changes of assumptions: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-

retirement Mortality Table for male and female active employees. For State employees, mortality tables are

set back 4 years for males and females. For local employees, mortalrty tables are set back 2 years for males

and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base

yr* oiZOt: using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.

post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality

Tables (set back 1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members

and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for

service retirements and beneficiaries of fonner members provide for future improvements in mortality from

the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014

projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000

Disables Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward I year for females).

3. Other Post-Retirement Plan - Pubtic Employees' Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and

Annuity Fund

Changes of benefit term: llterewere none.

Changes of assumptiozs.. The discount rate changed from 2.85%o as of June 30, 2016 to 3.85Vo as of June

30,2017.
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Speclal Revenue Fund

Comblnlng Statement of Revenues and Expendlturcs
Budgetary Basls

for the Fiscal year Ended June 30, 20lg

Brought
FoIward

(Exh. E.1B)

351,036
1.O93 r)'
'1.4't4.258

5S1,481
54,577

499.751

1.145.809

$ 1,778 $

Brought
Forwad

(Exh- F-1cl

1.77A

1,778

1.778

1.778

E.1

Tdtels

1,778
351,036

1.O93rD

'1.446.036

591;481
56,355

499,751

1'ta? 5A7

REVENUES:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruc{ion:
Salaries of teachers
General supplleg
Tuition

Total instruction

Support serviceb:
Salaries of program director
Personal seMces-employee benefi ts
Purchased prof. and educaflonal seryices
Travel
Supplies and Materials

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and @nst serv.:
lnstructional eguipment
Non-instructional €quipment

Totral facilities acquisition and const serv.:

$

o{

22,313
244,870

13,953
8,466
8.847

22,313
244,870

13,953
8,466
aa7

298.445

1.444.2s8

298.449

1.1146.036
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses) s $ s



Preschool
Prcgram

Aid

351,036

35,t _036

272,427

272.427

78,609

78.609

351 036

534.632

3't7,054
47,628

364 680

164,401

5.55't

169:952

I 051

473.4s3

473.493

473.493

47? AA?

E.lB

Totals

351,036
1rl9.12r1

' 1.444.258

591,481
54,577

499.751

1.145.809

29A.449

1.444.25A

LOWER TOWNSHTP SCHOOL DTSTRICT. Speclal Revenue Fund
Gomblnlng Statement of Revenues and ExpendlturcB

Budgetary Basis
ior the Fbcal year Ended June 30, 2olg

No Chitd Left Behind (N.C.L.B.)

#q- +#f*& -Jffik-

lndividuals with Disabitities Act

_ Basic.. preschool
uunent Yr. current Yr.

$-$

REVENUES:
Local soutces
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstructioh:

Salaries of teachers
General supplies
Tuition

Total instruction

Support services:
Salaries of program direc{or
Personal services€mployee benefits
Purchased prof. and educational services
Travel
Supplies and Materials

Total support seMces

Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
lnstructional equipment
Non-insfuctional €quipment

Total facilities acquisition and congt. serv.:

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
elpenditures and other financing sources (uses)

$ $$
$

6
@

48.435

48.43s

10 Afja

10.404

2,000
6,95't

153

1,000
300

1.453

10.4M

26.258

26.25A

26.25e

26.25A

24.258

22,313
244,870

13,953
8,466
8,847

22,313
1,707

13,953
7,466
2.996

48-435

48.435

r3



LOWER TOWNSHTP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Speclal Revanue Fund

Comblning Sht6ment of Revenues end Expendlturos
Budgetary Basls

for the Flscal year Ended June 30, 20lg

Cape Ed
Funds

McGarrv

403

E.lc

Totials

1.778

1,778

1.77e

1.774

REVENUES:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salaries of teachers
General supplies
Tuition

Total instruction

Support services:
Salaries of program director
Personal services-employee ben€fib
Purchased prof. and educational seMces
Travel
Supplies and Materials

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and @nst. serv.:
lnstruc{lonal equipment
Nonjnstructional equipment

Totalfacilities acqubition and const. serv.:

Cape Ed
Funds
Jess

$ 300 $

Cape Ed
Funds
Erina

492

Cape Ed
Funds

Baldwin

403

492$493$493$1,72a

300 40t ao3 !o3

@
ro 493

493

493

493

492

492

300

300

Tohl Eeenditures

Excess (Deflciency) of revenues o\rer (under)
erpenditures and other financing sources (uses) s !t $.

-.



E-2

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Preschool Education Aid
Budgetary Basis

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

School: District Wide Total

Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:.

lnstruction:
Salaries of teachers
Generalsupplies

Total instruction

Support Services:
Salaries of program directors
Employee beneifts

Total support services

Facilities acquisition and const. sery.:
lnstructional equipment

Total facilities acquisition and const. serv

Total expenditures

$ 272,427 $ 272,427 $

272,427 272,427

78.609 78,609

78,609 78,609

$ 351,036 _$ia99q_ $

CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER

Tota I Revise d 20 17 -20 1 8 Preschool Education Aid Allocation
Add: Actual PreschoolCarryover (June 30, 2017)

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available tor 2017-201g
Less: 2017-2018 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid

(lncluding prior year budgeted carryover)

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Funds
as of June 30, 2018

Add: June 30, 2018 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid

$ 351,036

351,036

351,036

2017 -2018 Preschool Education Aid Carryover

2017-2018 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs in2018-2.019

90
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Capital Projects Fund

Detail Statements



LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRTCT
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditurcs,
and Changes in Fund Batance - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

F-1

$
200

200

1,309
1,000

200
2,509

(2,30e)

168,437

$ 166.128

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Procee.ds of serial bonds
lnterest earned on investments

Total revenues and other financing sources

Expenditurcs and Other Financing (Uses):
Purchased professional seryices
Construction services
Transferto Debt Service Fund
Total expenditures and other financing (uses)

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance - July 1, 2O17

Fund Balance - June 30, 2018
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Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Bond proceeds

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund

Statement of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance,
and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Various lmprovements and Renovations to the Districfs Facilities
From lnception and for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Prior Periods Current Year Total

F-1a

Revised
Authorized

Costs

$ 5,121,000 $ 5,121,000

_ q,121,000 5,121,000Tgtal revenues

Expenditurcs and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased prolessional services
Construction services
Equipment
Other Objects

Excess (deficienqy) or revenues over
(under) expenditures

Additional project information:
tsond Authorization Date
Bonds Authqrized
Bonds lssued
Orlginal Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage lncrease over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

$ 5,121,000 $

5,121,000

$ 430,819
4,521,744

$ 1,309
1,000

$ 432,128
4,522,744

$ 432,128
4,522,744

4.952,563 2,309 4.954.872 4:.954.872

$ 168,437 $ (2,309) $ 166,128 $ 166,128

01t26t16
$ 5,121,000
$ 5,121,000
$ 5,121,000
$
$ 5,121,000

0.00%
1O.OOo/o

08t26t16
1ABU16
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EXHIBIT F-2

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capitaf Projects Fund

Summary Statement of Project Expenditures
Year Ended June 30, 2018

lssue/Project Title
Date

Authorized Appropriations Cancelled
Unexpen$ed

Balance
Expenditures to Date

Prior, Years Current Year

,Various lmprovemenls to
School Facilities 1t26t2016 $ 5,121,000 $ 4,952,563 $ 2,309 $ $ 166,128

$ 5,121,000 $ 4,952,563 $ 2,309 $ $ 166,128
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G-1

LOWER TOWN$HIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position
as of June 30, 2018

Food
Service

Day Care
Program Total

ASSETS:

Current assets,
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:

,State
Federal
Other
lnterfund

lnventories

Total current assets

Fixed assets:
Equipment
Less accum ulated depreciation

Totalfixed assets

Totalassets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
lnterfund payable
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total curent liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated Absences

Total Nsncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NETPOSITION:
Net investment in capitalassets
Unrestricted

$ 73,990 $ 250,014 $ 324,004

558
41,992

5,486

16.444

2,747

558
41,932
8,233

16,444

138,410 252,761 391,171

271,073
(268,548)

271,073

2,525 2,525

40,935 $ 252,761 $ 393,696

$ I
7,O23

2,429
14,264

2,429
21.283

16,689 23,712

16 5,086 97,902

97 902

121,614

$1

$

, I,023

921816 5'096

99,839 , 21,775

$ 41,096

-

2,525
38,571

2,525
269,557230.9B6

Total net position

95

$ 230,986 $ 272,082



G-2

LOWER TgryNSH.lP SCHOOL DTSTR|CT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Food
Service

Day Care
Program T

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

Daily sales+eimbursable progftlms:
Schoollunch program

Total-daily sales-reimbursable programs

Daily sales non-reimbursable prograrns:
Adult and AlaCarte meals
Registration Fees
Miscellaneous
Special Functions

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs

Purchased property services
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch program
School breakfast program
Snack Program

U.S.D.A. commodities
Operating transfer in
lnterest revenue

Total non-operating revenues

Change in net position

Total net position - July 1

Total net position - June 30

$ 125,159 $ $ 125,159

125,159 125,159

65,868 65,869
428,299

2,130
50,139

428,299
2,130

,139

243,296 428,299 671,595

379,836
219,797
26,686

1,552
193,633
179,755

10,247
5,559

341,088
26,030
'19,587

720,924
245,817

46,273
1,552

193,633
179,755
10,247
5,559

1,017,055 386,705 1,403,760

(773,759\ 41,594 (732,165)

8,198 8,198

367,615
268,377

1,193
66,173

169

711,715

(62,044)

103,140

41,594

189,392

367,615
268,377

1,183
66,173

169

711,715

(20,450)

292,532

._g_n2,ou_

97

$ 41,096 $ 230,986



G€

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTR]CT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Food Day Care
Program Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital fi nancing activities:
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Commodities
Change in assets and liabilities:

(lncrease)/decrease in accounts receivable
(lncrease)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease/decrease in interfund receivable
lncrease/(decrease in interfund payable
lncrease/(declease) in accounts payable
lncrease/(decrease) in uneamed revenue
lncrease(decrease) in compensated absences

(606,707) 52,594 (554,113)

640,417 640,417

$ 329,436
(585,042)
(351,101)

$ 436,578
(366,926)

(17,158)

$ 76A,014
(951,868)
(368;25e)

640,417 640,417

169 169

169169

33,879 52,594

'197,420

86,473

237,53140 111

$ 73,990 $ 250,014 _$_q4991_

$ (773,759) $ 41,594 $ (732,165)

1,552
66,173

(1,133)
725

83,934
(2,118)

1,041

1,997
7,238

824

1,552
66,173

(e2)
725

3,338
14,581

83,934
(2,118)
1,997

10,576
15,405

Net cash used by operating activities

98

$ (606,707) $ 52,594 $ (554,113)



G4

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
lnternal Service Fund

Self-lnsured Health and Prescription Plan
Statement of Net Position

as of June 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Cunent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total cunent assets

Totalassets

LIABILITIES:

Curent liabilities:
Accounts payable
Reserve for medical claims

Total curent liabilities

Net Position:
Unrestricted

ToblNet Position

lnternal
Service

Fund

$ 984,056

984,056

$ 984,056

$ 736,342
247 71.4

984,956
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G-5

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
lnternalservice Fund

Self-lnsured Health and Prescription plan
comparative statement of Revenues, Expenses and changes in Net position

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

lnternal
Service

Fund
OPEMTING REVENUES:

Local sources:
Contributions

Total operating revenue

OPEMTING EXPENSES:
Employee Benefits

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Netincome (loss)

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

$5

5 058

5.525,058

5

$
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
lnternal Service Fund

Self-lnsured Health and Prescription plan
Statement of Cash Flows

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 201g

lnternal
Service

Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments for medical claims

Net cash used by operating activities

Net increase,(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:
lncrease(decrease) in accounts payable
lncrease(decrease) in reserve for medical claims

Net cash used by operating activities

$ 5,525,059

127,000

$

127,000

857,056

$

278,902
(151,902)

$ 127,000
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H-1

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Funds Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust

Student
Activity Payroll Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
lnterfund payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Restricted for:

Unemployment claims

Totalnet position

$ 27,164 $ $ 167,612 $ 194,776

$ 27.164 $ -$-19191?- $ 194,776

$-

, .27,164

27,164

$ 13,392
31,231

$ 13,392
31,231
27,164..

, 122,p89

$ 122,989

$

14,623 71,787

$ $

. 1?2,989

$ 122,989
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LOWER TOWNSHTP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund

Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net position
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2O1g

REVENUES:

Local sources:
Board contributions
Employee contributions
Interest on lnvestments

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Expense:
Undistributed expenditures:

Unemployment payments

Total Expenditures

Change in net position

Total net position - July 1

Total net position - June 30

Unemployment
Compensation

lnsurance
Trust Fund

$ 40,000
32,542

149

72.691

61,2U

61,204

11,497

111,502

$ 122,989

104
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipb and Disbursemenb
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

Balance
JUN 1.2017

Cash Cash
Disbursemenb

Accounb
Payable

June 30, 2018
Balance

June 2018

Elementary Schools - All

Totral

$ 18,427 $ 15,767 $ 7,030 $ $ 27,1U

$ 18,427 $ 15,767 $ 7,030 $ $ 2v,1u

L05
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivable

Totalassets

LlABILITIES:

Payroll deductions
and withholdings

lnterfund payable
Net payroll

Total liabilities

Balance
July 1,2017

Balance
Additions Deletions June ,2018

$ 30,699 $ 19,484,012 $ 19,514,711 $

$ 30,699 $ 012 $ 19,514,711 $ -:

$$ 30,346
353

$ 8,429,715
253

11,054,044

$ 8,460,061
606

11,054,044

$ 30,699 $ 19,484,012 $ 19.5 14,711 $-
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statement of Seriai Bonds
June 30,2018

Rate
Annual Maturities

Date Amount
of

lssuelssue lssue

School Bonde 04120116 $ s,121,000

of Balance
Julv'1.2017

$ s,121,000 $

s 5121000 $

t-1

BalancE
Retired June 30, 2018

$ 160,000 $ 4,961,000

$ 160.000 $ 4.961.000

of
Date Amount lnterest lssued

04t01t15
04101t20
04tot1t21
o4lo1t22
o4lo1t23
o4to1t24
o4tolns
04101t26
o4tun7
o4l01t28
04to1t2s
o4lo1t30
o4to1t31
04101t32
04t01t33
utoltu
o4lo1t35
04/01/36

160,000
160,000
200,000
225,OOO

250,000
250,000
275,000
275,000
300,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
320,000
306,000

2.00o/o

2.OO%
- 2.00olo

2.000/o

2.00o/o

2.OOVo

2.OO%
2.OOalo

2.000h
2.OOoh

2.75%
3.00%
3.OOVo

3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.000/6

$

tso
6
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DTSTRICT
Geneal Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statement of Capital Leases
June 30, 2018

White Boards

Energy Leas6

Description

Total

lnterest
Rate

Payable

2.395%

3.350%

Amount of
Original

lssue

$ 99,577

1,999,000

Amount
Outstanding

June 30.2017
lssued

Current Year
Retired

Current Year

Amount
Outstanding

June 30, 2018

$ 40,285 $

1.899.000

$ 40,285 $ 1,899,000 $

$ 19,904 $ 20,381

1.899:000

19,904 $ 1,919,381
H
c)
\o
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Gomparison Schedule
Debt Service Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

,Original

Budqet
Budget

Transfers
Final

Budget Ac'tual

Variance
Final to
Actual

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy
Miscellaneous

Total revenues - local sources

State sources:
Debt service aid type ll

Total revenues - state sources

Tolal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Regular debt service:

Interest
Redemption of principal

Total Expenditureg

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfer in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

$ 148,227 $ $ 148,227 $ 148,227 $

148,227 148,227 148,227

138,533
138,533

138,533 138,533
138,533 138,s33

286,760 286,760, ,286,760

127,100
1p0,000

287j00

127,100
160,000

127,080
160,000

20

287,100 287.080 20

20(340)

200

(340) (320)

200

200 200

(340)

10,357 
,

$ 10,017

(340)

't0,357

(120)

10,357

220

$ $ 10,017 $ 10,237 $ 220

110
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(
Lomr Towrchlp School Dktrl3t
Net Posltlon bi Componcnt,
Ll3t Ten Fl6cal Ye.E
(a6ualbas/isif ffiunhw)

Govemmental activlti$:
Net lnv€stment in capltal asseb
Restidsd lbn

C€pital pojscts
SpEcrlalrcvenue
Debt service
Otherpurposes

Uni€gtriclod
Totai govemm€ntal aclivities not pGition

Busin€ss-lype aciivitgs:
Net lnwstnent in capital asssts

Distict+vlde:
Net lnvestmEnt in .capilal asssb
Reskiclsd:

Capitalprojecrs
Special t€vgnuE
Debt ssrvice
Oher purposes

Unr€strici€d
Total.distict net poeidon

Flscal YEar Ending June 30,
2009 2010

9 10,586;124 $ 10,714,210

1 61,193
(34,003) (34,76s)

(2,938)
3,561,030 2,417,242

ExhlbftJ-l

2011 2912 _ 2013 2014 _ 2015 2A18 2017 2018+

(2.083.868) Q.216.2651
$ 12.026.316 $ 10.939.8.t5 = l?,9?1, 99) q,ggg,zlgl , (2,210,s38) (1?.211,6721

_!_!.314399_ _$__9.1!4JgZ_ _!__!i-3ros -F-ii-t6Ein7i . (13-,9?136?) (14,733,308) (14,760,4s6)
$ (1.5e7.645) $ . (6.sos.s93t rt 67i6mi

I
(34,033)

(2,e38)
3,561,030

I 10,735,741

61,198
(34,765)

2,417,242

$ 10,541268

88,871
(39,560)

2,329,231
(2,532,94O\

_$il9E9q€Z9_

$ 10,559,302

88;871
(39,560)

2,3'5,231

$ 10,203,897

1

(34,366)

2,478,305

$ 10,218,897

1

(34,366)

2,478,305

E 9,820,210

(36,;4r)

1.690.504

$ s,s32,178

(36,241)

r,eso,io+

(37,1e3)

1,167,124
(1,932,235)

$ 9.130.706

$ 4,859,924

4,807,566
(37,61 1)

2,117,a38

$ 4865,490

4,807,566
(37,611)

2.1',t7.88

$ .4,927,155

168,4it8
(33,014)

2,815,336

$ 4,931232

168,438
(33,014)

2,8't5.386

$ 3,435,75E

1,666,128
(35,104)

2,953,671

$ 3,438,283

1,668,128
(35,1o4I

2,953,0711.505.405
(12,936,641)

$ (1.473.200)

$ 9,923,902 $ 9,988,073

(37,193) (37J93)

1,167i124 1,505,405

s 9.983.010 $ 9;995,129

(37,193)

$ 25,968 $ 21,531 $ 18,034 $ ,15,000 $ 11,968 S 9,108

$ 10.612,0S2

8 7,056 $ 5,566 g 4,077 t .2,525u Un€bticted

1- Total businoss-typ€ aciivitiss nst position

N

257,527 4[,4.132
$ 283.4S5 I 425.663

-

= 1rj,9g? = .399,!21 . 31?,288 27a3o3$ 344,021 $ 36s,ozl $J2425t -g-mfr1- -=4 ?91199 , 288,455 26e,557$ 282:187 -l ?j70,735 $ @@ -S-2-7?:.,M

= !1,9?9,9.41) = !1,911,199) , €,206,e53) (1,e80,e68) (1,ee7,42s)
$ 12,30e,811 $ 11,365,278 _$1q,rc0,804 -il0F€186t -S-l;a6eJ-G- (13,070,193) n4.444353t /t4.49o.C2s\

s (1,316.910) $ (6.562.861) $ (6.467.9511



Lmr Tomship School Distrtc,t
Chang€s ln Net PGi6oni Last T6n Fiscal yaaB
(a@ual bads d a@unliM)

Expsn$a:
Govemmenbl activitic:

lnstuctioh:
Reguhr
Special sdu€tion
Othor inghlction

Support SeM6s:
I UROn

Studenl & instrudlon rslat€d seilic€s

GeneEl and businss adminblratire rervlcag
: Plinlopeatioris and meinlenane

Pupil fansportation
Unallocated employee bsnefib

lnleFst on long.isrm debt
Unalloettsd d€precialion

Total govemm€nlal activilies qpenses

BGlness-lype adiviti$:
After-school prcgnm
Food s€wi6
lntemal seMce fund

Toial bullnesevpe edivitie qpen$
Total disticl qp€nses

Prcgram Rewnu€:
Gov€mmeniel aclivitios:

Chaqes for sefllcas:
lnstruclion (tultton) .

Op€ratng grants and onbibulions

Total govommsntal actlviti$ prcgEm Gvgnu€s

__e_ ===??,45 :..-2,309 22,9AA 23.91529,08s,015 27,w2.e37 An1,24s 30.fffi6il 
-zr--@dA-

33A,113 314,2@ 285,435 280,687 306,7281,154,673 1,132,558 1,119,007 1,171,089 1,10S:597

ExhlbitJ-2

Fbcal Ysar Ending Jun6 30,

2@9 2010 2011 2012 2O1g . 2014 2Ot5 2016 2017 . 2018

$ 9,085,370
2,520,75a

2226

$ 9,514,28a
2,e!.2,7V3

91,224

49,787
3,O71,712

883,487
@8,646

3,6214,913
1r195,005
6,720,801

33,353

$ 9,743,s80
2,507,108

84,828

33 1,532
2,779,O70

879,408
595,880

2,1a\745
1,153,759
7,U,W

s 9,592,665
2,552,724

8,76t

508,575
2,737,U5

s2,528
630,621

2,4a1,083
1,299,670
7,666,662

s 8,876,911
3,1s7,61'l

96,038

4&,fi2
2,908,876

s32,5E2
726,A70

2,910,23s
1,276,545
9,362,514

$ 9,09s,@3
1,811,033

51,977

1,or'.S,St!
3,062,601

897,008
801,466

2,306,566
'1,281,876

s,04/.,216

s 9,803,43s

1,154,s10
2,976,379

882,873
770,720

2,410,716
1,191,733
8,956;103

338,3.t8
1,1'11,891

s s.v1.274
2,254,597

56,2116

897,749
3,025,692

895,451
821,459

2,833,408
1,189iS06
9,002,976

371,W.
1,045,665

$ s,841,467
2,127JgA

160,031

9,855,187
1,959,179

240,O45

703,106
3,090,7at

71334
846,068

4,623,372
1,053,784

19,735,507
125.,280

386,705

s
1,638,485

65,6S€

47265
2811,069

848,452
607,776

2,735,170
1,166,298
6,123,656

67,956

922,1Q.
3,063,784

75/.,045
&!8,568

6,947,27a
1,198,539

10,848,731
123,7821.728

,763,124

952,,A7
1,139,21

28,41727,84 30,413
29.877.888 30.760_s8A

. 34.s17 36.s33
36,858./t36 43.(D3.t64

395,85A
1,006,3lg

-4ei:iEg;-Egg?F- 
re ;W -ffig 

-re 
--rz5ozd6- -ffi --+#g-g-zsil4,@- -!--EgZ9.qqL $ -ZsF4r-J6.- -f-r"=iE66T- T--fr5CE?r' -n-_liiFfi- -i-:it*E# ii-r^-6a;- --rt=r#

1,017,055
5,525,058
6.928.818

$ 49.951.982

H
H
lr)

$-$-$-
3,2U,A44 3,873,067 3.025,112

---ffiffi -l--='ffi --affiit
$

3,340,003
$ 58,912

3,891,899
$

4,175Jn 4,42.074 15,668,092

-ffi050 
-:-5$36- ----5.se6u: ----.eso,Eii- -"@ffi --ffi --_-isp66"0r2-

(Codiru.d)

$ 97,018
3,996,9s0

$ 72,516
3,52420€

$ $



Lowr Townlhip Sch6l Dbtdct
Changes in Net Po3iuon, Last T.n Fisal year
(aeml basis d a&untng)

Business-tps adiyitlos:
ChaEes for seruices:

Aftor-shool prcg€m
Food sMcs
lntemal s6Me fund

Opeating qEnts and contributlong
Capital granb and onlributlons

Toial businiss type acliviti$ prcgEm revenus
Total district pogEm revenues

Gowmmental aclivities
Busin€sstype actiiiti€g
Total distici{id€ n€t expens

Gerenl Rsnus rnd Other Ch.ngs In l,let postflon:
Gowmmen{al ac.tiviti$:

PEpsrtr tbx$ levi€d tor geneEl .purposds, net
Tax6s lsviod for debt seMcs
UnEstricted granb and €ntibutiong
Tultlon
lnwstment eaming3
Misellan€ous incom
Lo$ on DbpGal of Caphal Assts
TEmf€ls

Totel gremmental sclivitis

Busin€sstlpe activilios:
lrestmont €mings
MEellaneous iioms
Loss on Dlsposal of Cepibl Assets
TEnsis6

Totai busineslFtypo activities
Total distdd{i4de

ihanse ln N6t Posltlon:
Govemmontal aclivities
Buslnes$typ€ aclivitios

Tobldistrictdde

- 189,702
171,453

$ 24.382j2s

$ 682,192 $ (1,086,701)

EdibitJA

FlslYEr Ending Jum 30,

2009 2OlO 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2O1e 2Q17 . 2018

$ 367,080
408,825

678,235

$ 13,899,088
470,n5

s,883,607
26,299
67,208
33,397

322,827
406,152

732,403

$ 13,899,088
472,801

9,777€o1
37,015
25,595
8t,147

303,179
363,675

$ 321,536
355,887

748,186

$ 14,659,327

10,199,023
19,971

182,353

309,628
325,89:i

327,899
255,770

$ 395,383
ft1,627

7A7,A75

$ 15,806,s95

10.,276,148

a,417

$ 388,78s
241,42

a,874,547
775,868

$ 18,317,286

10,s07,539
4,62

94,M

412,910
249,7't4

6,581,757
76'1,743

$ 16,643,631
125,114

10,360,506
15,593

$ 428,2S9
243,2fi

5,525,058
711,9A

$ $ $

;-; =l =-Et.E- =:ffi = I@a ;-lFe??a .=--@F llEF -:@ . --sro.-lzr- ----3.soei66-$ 4.688.784 $ 5.334.449+ # _g___3!9911L _!_lz99E1?_ S E304706 T---E?5-idi- F-55rrffi- --?r*-fzi- l_--e::6i f "":::::_
$(23,528'480) $€5,211,e48) $(24,4!,8-?? $(2s,131,246) $(26,043,6s8) t,*Ogg,11g1 S(25,rJ27,yn $e6,5s53r1) $(32,436,362) $(27,3ss,072)(37'028) (2e'4o4) ..=_J*9991 

--=-?1JPJ- 
--944L , ' qgggi - '-- 

==tg-s?ai == i.1l.g32r 2'ssz (2:.s':s)
-9-e9,!g!,59q -q-e!49,99?t T rz1F6.q60t -S-"Elio-md :f%I8fiEi -3ffir'tffi T-:?tEdfiif -:naffi;f @ f:#i-*

657275

$ 14,371.889

9,,l:l5,080
35,869

ail,B3

774,807

$ 14,952,514

9,864,381

7s2@.

794,91.1

s 15,251,564

10,1/4,809

86,495

$ 16,812,3ri8
148,27

'r0,.18,1,719

63,482

H
H
lF

13,770 27468
('169.702) (170.000|

24.210.a72 24125247. 23,e25.080 -25"0s0.674 ----24,8s2F 25ffi --:=6-"0-6sJ66- 
-'6E5J-E5- 

-=tJ6'e5i?- 27,4ao.4E2.

1,751 1,572 169205100100133383

170.000
171.572

$ 24.296.819 -------5i 
----F 

------'-id . '@ 
--i6d- 

- 
=eo- -----Zd- 

----6s
T-E5t6p-.t5- -S=66TtFi. -S-?56tiq -f:'d6:86=- T-?6pdgidd- t$:-'6.?5-bF T-?Id,8-5id- Tz?rqdil

$ (q*,149) I (70,572) $(1,1s1,541) $ (321,4€2) $ 162,083 $ 167,742 $(5,267,748) $ 125,3€0
----J91€1a- . 21'5s0 = ,, 111,919! ,J?9.91!l ,!?,??+) 

---!1f,1t2L 
. ' 21.7s7 rzo,rgor

_S___1q94384 _!_:_gg!A3I t(iJt2F56t -S----ies8-,3-6t -5-rs6-F6- T-::iE6'F6- T--i5zdrsr,- -$----Id4r-m-
1U,425 . .142,168

$ 816.617 $ (92t4.5331



Lower Townshlp School blstrlc,t
Fund Balances, Govemmenul Fund!,
1"43t Ten Fl3cal Yellt
fidlfad ad'rua|bas,b of accooriing)

General Fund:
Ressru€d fon

Enqmbrances
Maintonanco t€sewe
Capltal reierve
Ec€ss sutplus
Ecdss surplu8 - deslgnated br subsequer{

years oesndit/res
Unresetved - dssignated for bubsequent yeara

erpendltur€8
.UnreseNed

Total general fund

All Other Gov6mmsntal Funds
Ressrvsd:

Encumbrancag
Unr€rErvsd, rEportsd in:

Spocial l€venue fund
Capltalprojecis tund
Debt s€rvlcetund

Tolal all othor govemmentaltunds

Exhlblt J-3

Fbcal Yoar Ending JunE 30,
2 9 2O1O 2O't1 2012 2O1s 2O't4 2015 2016 2O,t7 2018 *

0I 6,592
1,292,28

1

5'14;138

681,254

1,066,800

$ 23,36E
1,2s2,2$

't

323,150

514,138

(34,765)
125,532

8,187
1,nzz$

1

507,e€

323,150

200,000

(3e,560)
88,870

7,239
1,292,28

1

407,54

507,648

263,638

7,090
1,@226

1

183,633

407,534

36,944
7C2,246

1

154,300

183,633

140,792
9C2,2$

'l
16/,,41

154,300

53,625

0 10,544
1,299;000

1

604,902

1e/.,441

38,611

$ 454,505
1,156,000

I
575,089

@4,5g2

14,483

$ 52,292
1,259,137
1,500,000
1,008,40t1

$$$

(470,872'
$ 3.090.159 = ,q71,?99) . .(386,e82) " (1,j2.8!t t3,u.s2n (400,583) _ €91,376) (350,134) (343,e52)

_s 1.19€.129_ j_49 F ei66E -

200,000
{476.683tg 1.a76.220

575,089

18,513

(35,104)
,166,128

$,n7

$ 141.261

-

H
H(t

s i$ s $ $ I s 4,261,A$ $ 28798 $

(33,014)
139,689

10,357

$ 145.780

(34,003) (34,366) (36,241) (37,193) (37.1e3) (37,611)
545,925

u0
T - t 5..T-,?6-. -d--A6rld- T--rcFi T'-ia6-Uait -6--i6dr -$-T@ @.

u



Lowef Towrchip School Dbtrict
Chango3 ln Fund Balances, Govemmental Fund.,
Last Ten Flscal Year!
(nrodlfred a@rua! basts ol accounttngl

Revenues
Tax lerry
Tuitlon charges
Transporlation charges
lnterest eamings
Miscellaneous
Slate sources
Federal sources

Total Gv€nu€

ExhlbitJ4

Fiscal Year Endlng June 30.
200€ 2010. _ 2011 2012 _ 2013 . 2014 2015 - 2016 20,t7 2018

- 

+ +

$ 14,369,863
26,299

67,208
35,397

't2,092,683

8,741,685
2,520,758

2,226

$ 14,371,889
37,015

25,595
89,144

12,799,581

9,319,145
2,U2,703

91,224

'449,787

3,071,712

937,241
808,646

2,U2,554
1,195,005
6,726,801
1,2t22,*O

$ 14,37t,889
35,869

'$ 14,659,327
19,971

$ 14,952,514 $15,251,584 $15.806,595 $ 16,3,t7,286 . $KJ,n2,745 $16,960,56552,286 39,381 58,512 34,062 15;598 ' 
$:462

44,732 33,135

=1,=0?9,999 ,1,956,310 1,062,388 1,451,s67
27,615,018 28,679,514 28,950,192 --761400576-

82,233
1 1.397,813

3,991;949
2,$7,108

u,826

3ri'1,532

2,775,070
832,178
595,880

2,334,858
1,153,759
7,222,580

72;a56

183,853
12,085.558

9,487,685
2,552,724

s3,7.67

508;575
2,737,845

876,5't l
630,821

2,313,328
1,299,6.70
7,666,662

148,285

7,399
12,990,692

1,178,373
30,039871

94,091
13,307.047

9;514,376
2,2, 4,557

56,246

4s7,749
3,025.6S2

834,826
821,459

2,66it,832
1,18S,906
8,852,U2

479,437

13,770
13,698,355

9,168,499
2,127,188

160,081

s22JA2
3,063,764

754,045
766,735

2,737,570
1,198,539
9,627,036
4,A70,517

276,464
14,202,231

9,399;936
1,959,17S

240,045

703,106
3,090,784

713,U4
7i2,SS5

3,198,569
1,093,784
9,273,925
2,293,40

75,7d 86;995
12,762,644 12,581,833
1,098,t88 1,090,884

28,986,125 29,083,592
1,175,244 1,090,225 1,274,fi6

30;928,330 31590,688 32,77i,r*

ts
ts
o\

Expendlturc.
lnstruction

R€igular lnstruction
Special education instructlon
Other speclal instruct'ton
Other lnstruciion

Support Servlces:
Tuition
Student & hsfuc{lon rEla{ed seMces
School administratlve s€rvices
Gen€ral and businsss adtnln.servlces
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportalion
Other supporl seMc€s

Capitaloullay
Debt seMc€:

Prlncipal
lnter€st and other charges

Total expenditur€s
Excess (Deficlency) of revenueo

over (unde0 e,genditures

70,827 38.386-_n@w@

472,A65
2,S11,069

807,776
804996

2,631,538
1,168,298
6,123,856

175,371

8,612,786
3,157,611

96,038

466,502
2,908,876

886,056
726.870

2,2U,2#
't,276,W
9,362,514

52,754

8,827,839
1,81'1,033

51,977

1,048,973
3,062i€Ol

850,379
801,466

2;626,991
1,261,876
I,U4,21A

179,613

9,225,303
i,638,48s

65,696

1,154,510
2,9783m

828,405
7m,720

2,713,81
'l,191.73tt
8,*n,529

323,862

Otfter Flnanclng aour€e3 (u8$)
Cancelled SDA Grant
Prcc€ods of Bonowlng
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total olherfinancing sources (uses)

Net change ln fund balances

Debl seilice as a percentag€ of
noncapital ereenditures

Source: Dbtrict record3

620,000 655,000 100,000

-- 

| 
-----@- 

127'0E0
z6F66m- 

_Z63tsr4-zs_ ffi -teFB?5A: -t:ii@ 
-'5m;s-6t 

--sstsm- r-iIt6F
ffi2,173 (919,23:,) /O,316 85,203 p25,2821 (4U,372' 2,:0,78 337,768 (3,925,791) (248,983)

(35,548) 1,899,000
s9,577 5,121,000_ 768,800 3rc 1,276 2oO

(16e,702) (170,000) (ss,sast 
- 

- 

-----E- 
-;TtiFoo- 

..........: 
-Ts-55n6-

-$-1%ll1- -$-a,qpg?ggt -$--1989- -!--89!9- -S--1925,?9?t -S-(484,3721 _9_-_320,345_ _S_!18768_ _$_(3,s25,7e11 _S_t,65qgt_

2.57% 2.4% 0.m% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.39% Q.93%

Note: Noncapital exp€nditues are trotal elpendihres less capitalouflay.



Lower Township $chool Distrlct
General Fund -OtherLocal Revenue bySource
Last Ten Fiscal Ycarc
lmodified a,ccrual basis of accounting)

ExhibitJ{

Miscellaneous
.-lilll---

TotalTransportation

$-

Sale of
Equipment

$

52,286
33,135

2,77s

4,366
5,645 74,950

$ 95.432 $ 77.765

Fiscal Year
Endinq June 30.

lnterest on
lnvestments

$ 67,208
25,595

8,338
4,584
1,571
1,046
1,536
1,763
6,403
7,147

_$__125,191-

Tuition

$ 26,299
37,015
35,969
19,971
44,732
39,381
s8,912
u,062
15,593
63,462

91,851

2,106
83,654

135
184,989

$ 32,260
33,500
69,600
69,600
71,000

_$rz9€99_

Refunds of
Prior Years

E{penditures

$-
Refunds Rentals

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 290
47,897
2,400

16,287

80,691

540
807

1,609

$ 847
1,750
1,895

31

3,191
4,758

7,969
2,059

106

$ 126,904
145,757
118j02
202,324
172,780
159,011
65,329

127,988
29,363

337,948

$ 1,48s,506

H
H{

$ 375,2e6 s 36273t -S-150s21

Source: District records



LomrTMahip SchotobHot
A6ae!*d Vrlue and
tr3tTen FbcdYea6

TomshiD of tffit

Exhlbit J€

Hmil.d Actu.l
(County EqurllzodlJurc 30, v.ant Llnd R$ldenihl Fanr Reg. af"- conrcrclal lndGtrlal Apartment

Fbc.l
Y.l'

En(bd

2009
2010
?lJ11
2012
2013
2014
20ts
2016
2017
2018

4,914,/O0
5,052,6@
5,413,000
6,380,900

Publlc
TotllA$cs.d lftil|fl€r.Vllue r

0 4,702,826,s00
4,089,388,000
4,084,831,700
4,089,365,200
4,086,585,400
3,59/.,414,200
3,801,051,900
3,610.378.900
3,62't,088200
3,830,261;@o

iotat Oma
Tu- Schol Trr

l,let Valurtlon Exenpt Rlte
Trxabl PEperty b

t 135,540,800
98i432;700
s1,427800
47,921,40
80,948,300
70,784,000
70,254,400
68,016,300
u,275,700
4,n9,W

$ 5,612600
.6,7t,390
6,219,800
4,460,700
5,236,800
4,914,400

0 951,S@
987,900
942,300
91't.900
953,300
s53,3S
927,4@
5r',6{tO
595,500
567,200

s309,691,200
275,537,4@
278,27s,9QO
276,929,100
275,766,.100
.258,8{b,900
.259,130,@0
263,588,800
264,828,800
264,001,400

$ 14,r6s,900
13,375,400
'13,375,400

13,101,/too
13,161,400
1't,3:}2,2@
11,4Q.m
11,452,2@
11,452,2@
11,432,24n

i .6,790,522

a,7e,s7i2
5,957,340
4,102,5@.

. 5,339,934
4,332206
4,347,721
4,212,flA
4.172271
4.',t76,452

$ 4,709,6i7,022
4,O9E'1m,5712
4,090,589,&0
4,055,467,7C2

.4,071,S25,334
3,598.751,.106
3,605,39€,621
3,614,5s1,078
3,625,260,47.1
3.634,r13S,452

$319;276,100 3
'261,s.t0,700

268,718,900
268,066,300
270,14,@O
23'.N.,ffi
234,3t)5,200
232,698,600
233.,77aj@
237,888,O00

$ .f,5C,993,506

. 4,418,591,951
4,27,524,473
4,Wj3'.:n1
3,77:,,894,430
3,n5,002,834
3,719,358,459
3,781,5ts6,024
3,802,01 1,213
3,906,07E.119

0 4,238,864,1(x)
3,690,867,300
3,694,3S0,400
3,705,980,700
3,684,519,500
3,247,@,400
3"254,398,300
3,261,711,/O0
3,274,589,000
3,283,120,000

0:308
0.351
0.355
0.382
0.37r
0.432
o.4a
0.458
0.rt66
o.472

ts
H
@ Sourc: iiuniciprl Tu AasEr

l,lote:
R€el property i3 rsquiEd to be 8ss€$sd at $lhe peEentage of hr€ valE (ielr or md€t value) establishod by €ach county boaftt of tantlon.

Reascssment bccurs wh€n odeBd by the Couniy Board ofTaafFn

a Taxabb Value of Mactln6ry, lmprorcmsnt! and Equipmont of Tolephone, T€l6graph and Mss€ngtr Sysl€n Companls

b Tdnig3aEporolq)



Lower Townshlp School District
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $l 00 of assessed value)

Exhibit J-7

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30, Basic Rate

Obligation
Debt Service

$ 0.010

0.002
0.004
0.004

Total
Direct and

Overlapping

Fatg

$ 1.112
1.299

. 1.306
1.307
1.362
1.563
1.618
1.673
1.697
1.696

To9lDl,"ft

$ 0.306
0.351
0.3s5
0.362
0.371
4.432
0.446
0.458

LowFr Township School District Direct Rate Overlapping Rates

$$$

Township of Reglonal Cape May
Lower School Gountv

$2009
2010:
201',|
2012
2013
2014
2015
2o16
2017
2018

0.296
0.351
0.355
0.362
0.371
0,432
0.44:6
0.456
0.462
0.468

0.366
0.433
0.443
0.443
0.473
0.536
0.556
0.556
0:574
0.575

0.247
0.285
0.277
0.273
0.291
0.335
0.353
0.389
0.381
0.360

0.193
0.230
o.231
0.229
0t.227

0.260
0.263
o_270
0.276
0.289

Note:

Source: Municipal Tax Gollector

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the distrid can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other
compqnents of the districts net budget may not ex@ed the prebudget year net budget by more thin the spending growth
limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increaSed by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is
greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net V:luation Taxable.

b Rateg fordebtservice are based on each yea/s requirements.
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Lower Township School District
Principal Property Tax Payerc,
Curnent Year and Nine Yeare Ago

Taxpaver

Sun Lake Laurie RV, lnc
Harbortown Resort Marina
Achristavest Pier 6600, LLC
Jenlo Corp, & Harlo lnc
Shaw Limited Partnership
Bayshore Mall, LLC
Beachcornber Campground, lnc
Cape lsland Associates
FC-GEN RealEstate, LLC
Ghannels Apts @ NY Comm

Total

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

District Net
Assessed Value

Assessed
Value

,Exhlbit J-8

Yo ofTotal
Districl Net

Value

Assessed
Value

$ 100.063.600

201 2009

H
No

$ 17,300,000
15,003,700
12,696,700
11,700,000
10,101,400
8,512,700
6,749,100
6,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000

0.48o/o

0.41%
0.35%
0.32o/o

0.28o/o

0.23o/o

O.19o/o

0.17o/o

0.17o/o

0.17o/o

Taxpayer

Achristavest, LLC
Bayshore May
Victoria Health Corp.
North Cape Convalescent Center
Ponderlodge
Snows/Doxsee, lnc.
Harbortown Resort Marina, lnc.
Shaw Limited Partnership
Channels Apartments
Cold Spring Fish & Supply Co., tnc

$ 12,600,000
5,500,000
4,537,500
3,900,000
3,644,s00
3,591,000
3,435,300
3,229,4W
3,100,000
2,762,500

-$-6.$Amo-

0.27o/o

0.12o/o

0.10%
0.08%
0.087o
0.08%
0.07o/o

0.070/o

0.07o/o

0.06%

2. 3.04o/o



Lower Township School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Yeans

Exhibit J-9

FiscalYear
Ended June

Taxes Levied for
the Calendar

Year

Collected within the FiscalYear
of the Lewa Collections in

Subsequent
YearsAmount

Percentage
of Lew

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 13,958,311
14,104,390
14,371,889
14,659,327
14,952,514
15,251,5U
15,806,595
16,317,296
16,545,016
16,866,654

$ 13,958,311
14,104,390
14,371,999
14;659,327
14,952,514
15,251,5U
15,806,595
16,317,296
16,545,016
16,866,654

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Source: District rccords including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

a Schooltaxes are cpllected by the MunicipalTax Coltector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.

t2L



Lower Township School Distrlct
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Yearc
(dollats in thousands, except percapite

Exhibit J-l0

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 3Q

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
20't4
2015
2016
2017
2018

General
Obligation

Bonds

Unfunded
Pension
Liability

Activltles

Capltal
Leases

$ 655,000 $

78,708
59,724
40,285

1,919,381

Bond
Anticipation
Notes{BANS)

Business-Type
Activities

CaBital Leases

$-

Percentage of
Perconal
lncome'

o.olr,t"
0.43o/o

c
c

Total District

$ 6s5,000

PerGaolta b

o.o7% $ 32

H
N
N

5,121,000
5,121j000
4,961,000

78,708
5,180,724
5,161,285
6,880,381

3.57
236.81
237.13
c

Note: Details regading the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial Etatements.

a Based on Per Gapitra lncome for Cape May County

b Based on Schooi District population as of July 1,

c Not available



Lowef Township School District
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Yearc
(doltars in thoasands, exclept per capita)

General Bonded Debt

Exhibit J-il

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

General
Obligation

, Bon4: Dg{u$ions

$-$-

5,121,000
5,121,000
4,961,000

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value I of
Per Gapita b

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

5,121,000
5,121,000
4,961,000

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.007c
0.14%
0.14o/o

0.14%

$$

234
235

c

Note Details regading the distric{'s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

; Fff ff*'::-g'g f,.ff#,,nHfi on,-, o
c Not available.
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Lower Townshlp School Dlstrict
Ratios of Overlapping Govemmental Activlties Debt
As of December 31,2017

Governmehtal Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes:

Township of Lower
Cape May County General Obligation Debt
Lower Cape May Regional School District Debt

Subtotal, orrerlapping debt

Lower Township School District Dircct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Exhibit J:l2

Debt
Outstandino

$ 20,789,911
.226,578,595

9,862,000

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable'

Estimated
.Share of

Overlapping
Debt

100.000%
7.7560/o

53.904o/o

$ 20,789,911
17,573,436
5.315.977

H
N
tE

43,679,324

5,121,000

$ 48;800,324

Sources: Assessed value data used to estlmate applicable percentages provided by the Cape May County Board of Taxation.

Note:
Debt outstanding data provided by each governrnental unit.
Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of l-ower Township. This process recognizes that, when considerin! ihe District s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden bome by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not impiy inat 

-
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with pFoperty taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed properly values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the
district's boundaries and dividing it by each unifs total taxable value.



Lower Townshlp School Dlstrlct
Logal Debt Margln lnforma$on,
Last Ten Flscal YeaE
(dollarc in thousands)

Debt limlt

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the timlt
as a percentage of debt limlt

Legal Debt Margln Calculaflon for Flccal year 2018

Exhlblt J-13

Equalized valuation basis
2015 $ 3,758,142,246
2016 3,777,337,2U
20't7
IAI

Average equalized valuation of taxabie property

Debt limit (2.5% of average equalized valuation)
Net bonded school debt
Legal debt margln

tAr3l

tBI
tq

3.884.870.936
s 11.420.350.386

4.961.000
$ 90.208.587

$ 3,806,783,462

95,169,587 a

H
N(t

FlscalYear 
,

,oarq 2010 2011 20't2 2013 20't1

$ 107,897,776 $ 109,877,137 $ 108,231,233 $ 104,43s,224 $ 100,034,146 $ g5,777,e27

2Q',ts

$ 93,166,941

IBCI

2016

$ 87,8r/,10s $

5 121 60lr]

-$-l918e1zzg- _$l-99,!2il3l _$_!ez31l99_ _t 104439@_ _I_ss:7n.6n_ _$_93.15a94_ _g_!zzg!,j!L

o.oo% o.0o% 5.83%

201i 201A

93,615,145 $ 95,169,587

5.121.000 4.961-0oO

_$__98,4e1,11!_ _$_gg,20g.ggz_

5.470h 5.210h
0.00% 0.00% 0.000/6 0.00%

$ 100.034.146

0.00%

Source: Equallzed valuation bases w€re obtained from the Annual Report of fhe State of New Jersey,. Department of Treasury, Divlsion of Ta(ation

a Limit set by NJSA 18A:24'19 for a K through 12 district; other 0/6 llmits would be applicable for other dlstricds



Lower Township School District
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit J-14

Year Population "

Personal lncome
(thousands of

dollars) b

Per Capita
Personal

lncome"
Unemployment

Rate d

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
20'18

20,239
22,838
22,63',1

22,551
22,360
22,183
22,039
21,877
21,766

e

43,392
44,398
46,728
48,457
49,250
50,710
53,209
54,865

e

13.90o/o

14.50%
15.200/o

16.300/o

11.900/o

12.60%
11.10%
10j0%
9.80%

e

$ 878,210,688
1,0',t3,961,524
1,057,501,368
1,092,753,807
1,101,230,000
1,124,899,930
1,172,673,151
1,200,281,605

e
e

$

Source:
a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.
b Personalincome for the Township of Lower.
c Per Capita income for Cape May County.
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and WorKorce Development.
e Not available.

L25



Lower Township School Dlstrlct
Fulhtime Equivalent Dlstrict Employees by Funcfl onlprognm,
Last Ten Fiscal Yeae

Exhlbit J-i6

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

--o99-- 2010 , il.l1 2012 2ol3 2011 zOis 2016 2017 ,2018

'112
30

112
30

112
29

112

:'

36
I
2

22
:18
4

11

2

38
12
2

22
20
4

14
2

38
12
2

22
20

4

'14

2

.38
12
2

25
20
4

13
2

38
12
2

28
20
4

14
2

H
N{

Functlon/Proqram

lnstruction
Regular
Special education
Other special education
Vocational
other instruEtion
Nonpublic school programs
AdulUcontinuing educatlon progmms

Support Services:
Sfudent & instrudion related services
School administrative seruices
General and business administrative servii:es
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other siJpport services

Special Schools
Food Service
Child Care

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

114
25

114
25

114
25

114
25

116
27

116
27

36
I
2

24
17
4

11

2

36
I
2

22
18
4

11

2

40
15
2

26
18

3

12
2

40
15
2

26
18
4

12
2

36
I
2

22
18
4

11

2



Lower Township School Distrlct
Operating Statistics,
Last Ten Fiscal Yearc

Fiscal
Year Enrollment

Percentage
Chanoe

Teachlng
Staff b

.Puplll
Teacher Ratlo

ElementarV

Average
Dally

Enrollment
(ADEI G

1,857
1,885
1,848
1,828
1,811
1,826
1,788
1,725
1,666
I,657

% Change ln
Average Dally

Enrollment

Exhlbit J-17

Student
Attendance
Percentaoe

H
N
@

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
20't5
2016
2517
2018

1,874
1,897
1,834
1,A1
1,804
1,822
1,806
1,732
1,697
1,676

4.88Yo
4.880/o

0:26%
4.55%
7.82o/o

-2.22%
1.250h
6.450/o

3.47Yo
0.99%

't42
142
141
141
139
139
139
139
143
143

1:13
'1i13
'l:.13
1:13
1:13
1:13
1:13
1i12
1:,12

1:12

Operatlng
Exoendituresr

$ 26,182,647
27,684,821
26,837,020
28,167,188
29,758,653
29,388,351
29,495,U1
30,1 11 ,125
30,525,589
30,445,651

Cost Per
Pupil

$ 13,972
14,594
14,633
15,300
16,496
16,130
16,332
17,38s
17,988
18,166

Average Daily
Attendance

{ADAI C

't,763
1,763
't,731
't,720
1,702
1,722
1,699
1,640
1,585
1,577

1.640/o

1.51o/o

-1.96%
-1.08%
-1.08%
0.82o/o

-2.O8Yo
-3.52%
-3.42'/o
4.54o/o

94.94o/o

93.53%
93.67%
94.09%
93.98%
9430%
95;.O2%

95.07o/o

9s.14%
95.17o/o

Sources: District records

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count.

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debtservice and capital ouflay.
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of ceriificated staff.
c AveEge daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained tom the School Register Summary (SRS).



Lower Townshlp School Dlstrlct
School Bulldlng lnformaflon
Last Ten Fisca! YealB

Distrlct Buildlno
Elementarv
Charles W Sandman Consolidated (1S2S)

Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Maud Abrams ('1966)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

David C Douglass Veterans Memorial (1929)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Carl T Mitnick (1989)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Other
Central Administration (1 938)

Square Feet
Maintenance (1930)

Square Feet
Transportation(1 999)

Square Feet
Cuniculunr Trailer (1 995)

Square Feet
Special Programs Traiter (1986)

Square Feet

Number of S"chools at June 30, 2018
Elementiary = 4
Middle School = 0
Senior High School = 0
Other = 3

Fbcat Yeaf Endlng June 30,

61,711
581
5't7

67,4A1
527
458

395
417

67,481
527
459

3,469

3,848

2.880

938

684

3,469

3,848

2;880

2009 20{0+ +_ 20't1 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 "2017 2or8

61,7',t1
58.1

431

58,639
593
452

3S,303
395
375

67,48167,481
527
444

ExhibltJ-18

67,481
527
391

,71'l
581
443

6161,711
581
474

,711
581
475

61,71'l
581
475

61711
581
505

6'l

5S3
467

593
477

,711
581
443

61

593
433

593
439

593
439

593
448

593
436

593
476

395
390

395
387

395
447

395
456

395
426

395
442

61,711
581
500

58,639
593
485

39,303
395
427

67,481
527
436

61,711
581
455

58,63958,639

39,30339,303

58,63958,63958,639

39,30339,30339,303

58,63958,639

39,303

58,639

39,303

H
N
\o

39,303
395
424

67,481
527
482

527
409

3,469

3,848

2,880

67,481
527
451

3,469

3,848

2,880

67,481
527
440

3,469

3,848

2,880

67,481
527
456

3,469

3,848

2,880

Sour.ce: Districl Facilities Office
Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses.. lncreases in square footage and capacity are the result of' additions. Enrollment is based on the annual Oc.tober district count.



Lwer Towmhlp School Dl3trlct
Schedulo of Requlrcd lllalntenance
Last Ten Fbcal yea]! Exhlblt J.l9

172,766 1,141,215

$ 1,016.267 $ 6.085.344::

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES. REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

I 1-00G261-roo(

Flscal Year Endlng June 30,

' School Fecliitieg

Sandman Consolidat€d School

Maud Abrams School

Carl T. Miinick Sdloot

Memorial School

Totai Sdlool Factltttes

2009 ,,lo 2011 m12 2o1g 2014 2ols 2016 2017 2o1a Totar

$ 106'353 $ 115'268 $ 133,919 $ 140,626 $ 142,602 $ 1sg,22z $ 176,1gz $ r72,e66 $ 212,s5g I 2r4,3s2 $1,643,043
102'414 110,998 128,959 t3s,41o 137,gg7 161,996 169,69g 166,46*) 204i681 264,229 l,o'2,igo
66,968 72,576 148,799 156,251 158,535 186,919 195,731 192,073 236,171 304,880 1,718,8S8

118'170 128,075 84,319 88,543 89,837 105,920 110,914 . 108,841 13[',830

T--0dg6d- -f-T65ir T-.@d6- ffiFrL -s--zg_:zsi- -S Edd6t T--6.S'E- T-E0-E -g--?8-iF

F(,
o



Lower Township School District
lnsurance Schedule
June 30, 2018

School Package Policy (1)
Building and Contents (All Locations)

Limits of liability per oocurrence
Boiler and Machinery
Crime coverage
General and automobile liability
Workers' compensation
Educatods legal liability
Pollution legal liability

Cyber Liability
Molent Malicious Acts
Disaster Management Services
Fublic Employee Dishonesty

Surety. Bonds (2)
Treasuler
Board Secretary

Coveraqe
Self-insured

Retention

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

$ 175,000,000
125,000,000

500,000
20,000,000

Statutory
20,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000

500,000

275,000
100,000

250,000
None

250,000
250,000
250,000
175,000

None

None
None
None

$ 5oo
1,000

500
None
None
None

25,000 Pollution
100,000 Mold

25,000
15,000
15,000

500

$

(1)
(2',)

Atlantic & Cape May Counties Joint lnsurance Fund
RLI lnsurance Company

Source: District records
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

651 Route 73 North, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jcrsey 08053
(8s6)983-2U4
Fax (8s6) 983-6674
E-Mail: rinverso@iscpasnj.com

-Member of-
Anerican Institute of CPAs
New JerseySociety of CPAs

REPORT ON COMPLIAIICE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIAI\ICE REQUIRED BY THE

UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND STATE OF IYEW JERSEY CIRCULAR 15-08-OMB

IIIDEPENDENT ATIDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
ofthe Board of Education

Township of Lower School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

I have audited Lower Township School Distict's (School District), in the Gounty of Cape May, State of New Jersey
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described n the OMB Compliance Supplement, and the New
Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School District's
major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The School Disfict's major federal and state
programs are identified in 1[s $rrmmary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School District's major federal and state
progft'ms based on my audit of the tlpes of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained n Gorernient AudUtng Stond*d", issued by the Comptoller General of the
United States; audit requirements as prescribed b.y the Office of School Finance, Deparfinent of Education, State of New
Jersey, Title2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Pafi200, Unifurm Administrative Reqqirements, Cost Prinqiples, and
Audit ReEtirenentsfor Federal Awards (Uniforrn Guidance); and State ofNew Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB, Single. udit
Policltfu Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and State of
New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the tlpes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered nrecessary in the

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District's compliance.

r_33



K-2
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In my opinion, tlre Lower Township School Distict, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each ofits major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Lower Township School Disfiict in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing my audit of compliance, I considered the School Disticl's internal control
over compliance with the tlpes of requifements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal or state
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to test and report on intemal contol over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey Circular 15-08-OMB, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion
on the effectivgness ofttre Lower Township School District's internal conftol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the desip or operation of a confiol over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal contol
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, A signi/icant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contol over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of intemal conlrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in ttre first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal contol,over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identif any deficiencies in intemal confol over compliance that I
consider to be material we4knesses. However, material we'aknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal confiol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of
New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

INVERSO &STEWART,LLC

Certifi ed Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS001095

Marlton, New Jersey
Jarnary 31,2019
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Fedenl prcOEmor
FAIN GEnt o, Si.ts AErd

Numbd PolgctNumber Amounl

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Sch.dub of Extondtt{B of FGdeEl Amrdg

fortt! Fbel Y€r.nded Jun.30,2Olt

GEnI
P.ttod

5i15,069
482.649

ll1l17 'B//3c/1'E
7t'lt't6-68u17
7nn7.6AM.A

Erhlblt K€
8cHubA

Repaymenl June3o_2018
ofPilorYqr ffiEalanc6 Re@hEbl€ Rrenue cEnbr al

F€dsEl cEnior/FelhrclEh cEnbr/
PuEm Til€

U.S. Depsdment of Edu@fon
cenoEl Fund:

iredbal Assisbn6 ProgEm (SEMI)

Tohl G6n€El Fund

U.g. Dcp.rtrnent of Edu€tion
Slelal Rmnh Fund:

Eww S,tudofi Su6e6d6 Ac,t IESSA)
Tlte I
ritle I

Title lt- Paft A
Ttlo ll -PadA
Trile lll

lndiriduab Wlh Dbabli[6 Ac-i n.D.EA]
Pdd B - B6lc
Pwhool

Total Spocl.lRffinuo Fund

U's. Dcp.dm€trt ot Agrlcutuc
Eniemdss Fund:

Food Dbtf,bulion ProgEm
Ns{onal &h@l Lunch ProgEm

School B@tilbBt PrcgEm
SchoolBF.k&PrcgEm
Afier School Snad( PrldEm
Afier School Snack PmBm

Total Enbrp|ko Fund

Tobl FedeEl Awads

June 30.2017

317,38!t
168,108
10,e47
29,180
6412

424,143
23'632

€1528E) r y t.o2g.so?

Fodoral
CFDA

Numbet

10.565
10.555
to.555
10.553
10.553
10.555
t0.5!is

Aeounb Defenpd Dueto Ceh Bqdqd.ryRs€irable Rerenue cEnbr at Adlusbned Rq@ired gnenaturi"

93.28 . 1805NJ5MAP N/A O 69589 ?11t17-6/3U18 r - $ - $ _ $ 69.4s0 $ (69.569) $ - s (119) 3 _

69.450 (69.569) + (119)

E4.0,t04
E4.0t0A
84.367A
04:307A
8'1.355

soloAtTooso
s0104160030
s367A170029
s:]874160029
s365A170Gr0

ESSA-2E4Gi8
NCLB-28.1G17
ESSA-28||Git

69,06e
102,130

10,404
7nh6-et$t11
7nn7 -3B0nE

(186,10E)

r29,t60)

ESSA-264GIt
NctA?s/tG17 , 

6s,oa4 en,un
(46,4:ts) (?A54t

(io,4o1) €psa

G734qtl (47350)
c26258) (2.620

(,@3&\ J e7E.66s)

81.027
Eil.l73

H@7A170100
Hl73A1701 l,t

lDEAt6'lG'16
|DEA-284G18

473,493
2e2s8

7/1/17 -6//30f.8
7nn? -a13N1A

t81NJ3qM@9
l81M3o4N109e
171NJ304N1@9
1E1NJ304N1099
'171NJ304N'|009
1ElNJ304N109g
't71NJ304Nlogg

367,615
307,553
2eA.37E
27i2,7rn

?nnf -6F,u1E
7nn7 -6tsW16
7nn6-aaol17
7nn7 -0t3lJna
7nh6-e6u17
7nA7 -AB0n6
7t1n6 -At&!17

N/A
N'A
N/A
MA
N'A
N'A
N/A

e6,r7t 68,173
3i13,348

66,173)
GA7€r5)

2.,107
.250,76E e68,3?7)

14,9O7
1,129 (l,tE3)

19

+ 696.479 OO334S)

_$_____31- _g.JgZJ3g_ _ff!s6;!3gt-

('lt.s32!

_!_ - _!_G?qzq_! - -! -

H(,
(t 1,163

2,101

@1Cl\

fl4.904

('l!)

G7.08i1)

e4,269)

(r7,60s)

(54)

sa252_351t 3 - 3 -

Tha ftcmp.trylng Not s to Sch.dule. ot Erpendlt{E5 of Aurd3 .nd Flnanci.l As.lst ne tc il inbdnl part of ttir schcdulq



Erhibh K4
taHrb ALOWER TOVWSHIP SCI{OOL DISTHGT

Ad[duL ol Ereq|dhbE otsbi. Fh.Gid A..biiH
fordF Fbql Yqi qd Jum ror 20lt

Gdntq St t6
Prcsnm Junc3o,2olt C.nyMAmrd GEnt ffi (w.kow) clcr Budg.tryAnount , P€tbd R@hEblG R.MS GEnior.t ' 

Amount 
' Rslved E oddltuib. Adhatr.nt

R.p.ynot
ot Pdor Y..rd

8.1ilH

Jurc 30.2016
A@unb D.tmd e6 b
Rehdbh RcMe c6rbt rt

shGhfrrrDh.r.;tu

Stib Da?.itrEit ot Educ.doo
GmEl Fud:

EqGnadon Ald
Eq6lizeton AH
Sdaol Cholco Ail
SdtrdCholeAld
TEn$o(btm Aid
Tnfipo(don Aid
Spod.l Ed6ton Cat gorlc.lAd
gp6.hl Edricton C.tegodal Aid
Sc@dtyAld
S€drr|lyAId
AdJGhintAld
Adulhcni Aid
PARCC R..dl@Ad
PARCGR€dlB;Aid
P6 Pudl crwtr Aid

tE-495{34{,t20{76
,lt-a9sir31-5120{7s

r6-t9t03as120.066
r7.19S0tt51zx)6S
1t 495{3{.5120{14
t7-t95{3t512Gd14
16-191034€l2G0ls
I 7{95434€1 a}08t

t 5r@,2s8
5p2,8

7s6r1t
?96,2,1t

'5/,2717U2tt
tt8,9'0
88t,970
4il6,171
,a46,17E

I,626,86'
2.030',a12

't6,450

r6160
16/460
16,1d'
't5,t5o
15,E5t
't5,3?O

l03l,l
3il,?36
1e,14
ei,075
35,534
6,923

r,6"ll.,496
t,gto,sEit

2,W2
E16,79t
79t,t70

7t1t1? -i,aiil1a
7l1nB -6//3U17
711'17 -BBot1a
711t16 -8t30t17
ft1t17 -6FW1t
7llt16 -eB0t17
ltlt1t -6iN1E
?l1nB -6t3U17
7t1h7 -6t30t1a
7nn8-6ftU17
7filt? - 6130/16

711,16-680Jl7
Iflr,t? - 6/3or'tE
lt1t16-6t3',t17
?/trl7 - 6/30rt6
7n,16-6l3N11
71147 -6l3luL
7An6-6//.3lU17
74117 -6t30fia
7tu16-6Fi0lJ7
7tlt17 -6F,Utt
znAA.8BU17
n1n7 -6t3U1E
7nn6-6t30,/t7
?t1t1? -aBo,1a
111n7 -8t30,lE
711117 .6BU1A
?lln7 -6E0AA
711n1 -6f30na
Tnna-6r'3d17

,1,732,095
,471,605

721zEO
12313

605,10,t
69,31 3

tot,6,e2
60SZ2

405,15.1
ilOra65

1,661,750
1t4,1'tl

11,572
I,il93

11p72
1,,193

l,l,41E
I 131

$ (53@"?er)

096r1E)

Q61?11

(t68870)

(446,171)

(1,r26,t6e)

(16,160)

(16,1€0)

(r5,ts0)

(1s,370)

(J2,?36)

(64,070

(6,r23)

I (470303) |
orp6s)

(6s,074

(80,348)

(40,32r)

(r65,,fi9)

(1,1rO

('1,1t8)

(1.134

(ls,37oi

(3aJ3E)

G,t,07s)

I I

lE-{95.03i1€12G06/t
'17-195.034-5120{Eia

18-195{34€t2o{r5

(471,805)

(tz213l

(6e313)

160f',,

(40,,16s)

(ril,r.1)

(r,193)

(r,1e3)

(r,137)

(ro,al1)

(1.Rq

(35,538)

Pq Pupll Gror{0l Aid
Pblbdonal tamll€ ConnunlvAd

17{9${1344,|20.0E5
l14!5{34-5120{9E
l7{96{34{120{98
1t +95.{F4€t2GO9t
l?.495434€120{97
16.a05{3iFSl2s'l0l
l7-49s34-5r2Gt0t

It{4103t90
l7{,1103190

1t-{95{r34{t20.005
'l ?-a95.{r3'l{120.005
1t-a95{3,1{120{44
t?-19S4{120{44
'll-195.{t3'l6l2Gl0t
tl.{95.{t34{094{02
1 6.495{3,t-6094-001
I r495dll,t€094{04
14.t95{6+609+003
lt4tl5$it6094qB'

Prclb..loml L.rnlng Conmunlty Ad
Nd tuMo TnEpodrth Ald
Na P|lblh lE6porffiff Ald
llonda Tqiton Ald
Hon.l6 Tdlion AH
Ett o&ntyAld
Bb.orfmty Ald
L..d T..!tng tur Sdtmb
On BdrafTPAF P.61ff
On gehafTPAF Mcdlcd
On Bdr.rlPAF LTOI
Rdnbmd TPAF SocblSailt Contthdm
RclmbuiFd TPAF sod.l Ssdty Contihd@

Totd GqffilFnd

So.d.l Rc6E Fmd:
PE$drool Ed@too Atd

Ail

Toi.l Sp€d.l R*ilrd F[d

Mt Sewl@ Fund
Dctlt Swice AH Typ. ll

(39351t

(l,02t,907)

1r4i}}&44120{C6
17.a95{34-5120.t 66

35t,Gt3
330,1/tl

?nn7
7t1na

6r3dtt
6/!0fi? B3.0l4t

.:!3.0tat

It495.{'34612r}{t7 r3E,533 7l1/J't-6B0t1t

10,614

19121
H
(.,
Or

35,536
. 6,9t4

't,6'11,,196

1,079,5ti1
2,OC2

0,6"tt,498
(l ,lt79,5E t)

(2,oEA
(r47,140).l,!.7,110

30.351

PEadrool Ed@ton

13.70?.598 a,t3.69:t.320t n.or3,e'o

(351,030 es,ro,.)

34E.946 (l5tJx'8t a3s.ro4l

. 13E533 (13E.533t

3t5,9U
33.0,l,1

Si.b O.parthat of AgrlcultuE
eilqptiF Fhd:

St i. SdDol Lnch PrcgEm' S&SdbdlschPrcgrrm

tdl Enbfiba Flnd

totll Stat! Fhodal,Ashbnde

1&ioo{rog3so{zi
17-1()o-rr10-3350'{'23

8,'196

E,3E4

7tlt17 -6130na
TAnB-6/3,U17 , t4?11

(47il 
_ E.rt,l

_!l!.0€1!9a _!_ - _! - _! - _!__111!31!!_

LG Sid6 Fhlnldd A#n€ llot Sublectb Mrror progEm frabmhif@:
On-BohaltTPAF Conttutd - Pdtion (N*Budg€bd)
O+B.hif TPAF Conttuton - Pod RctEmont M.dt€t (N@Eudf€ted)
OeB.hdf TPAF Coftbudon - Ld€ T€m Dblbfltv (NocBudgeled)

Totd Str FhanchlAsilt @ Arbr.dro M..ior PrcgEm t ct rmtruti6

(E,rsa) (s5E)

. (8.19E) a55Et

-!l!lJ!lJ!Zt _! - lr. -jglutglgu _$_ - L-;
(l,671,.{s6)
(1,079,5r{)

12.Ogi2l

i ttl-itl?-glS)

Th. ffi !.rt'f ltg illb. io Sdrduh. .E m in!.gnl p.d of Ori. ehcdula



K-5
Lower Township School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20lg

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

The basic financial stateae$-s present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAp basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstite finance-related
legal compliance in which cerhin revenue is permitted by 9w o. g;rt agreement to be recogniznd in the audit year,
whereas for GAu{P reporting, revenue is not recogrrized until the subsequeii,t year or when thJexpenditures have'been
made.

The general fund is pf-sented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the one or more defened June state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated
pursuant to N.J'}.A. 18A:22-44-..2. For_GAAP purposes, payments are not recognized until ft;subsequent budget y"* a*
to the state deferral and recording of the one or more of the lune state aid pafrnents in the subsequent year. he speclat
revenu€ fund is presented in the accompanyf8 sc,hedules on the grant accounting budgetary Uasis wnicn ,"*!ri"",
encumbryncgs as expenditures_and also recogrizes the related reurnries, whereas the-GAA-p basis does not. The sieciat
leJ-enue fund also recogrizes the one or more June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A.
I8A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile expenditures from the budgetary basis to the GAAp basis is $21,532 in the general fundand $109,625 in the special revenue fund. See'Exhibil c-i, Notes ,to Required Supplementary Inroniution io,. u
reconciliation ofthe budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the g*i*f and special revenue funds.

I. GENERAL

$ S, 13,714,852
349,946
139,533

8,198

Total Awards & Financial Assistance g l,g77,gS4 $ l4,2l},5}g

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal and state
lward activity of tlre Lorver Township School District ('school Districf'). The School District is defined in Note t to the
School Disfrict's basic financial statements. All,federal and state awards received directly aom federal and state agencies,
as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other govemm6nt agencies, are included on the
schedules ofexpenditures offederal awards anJ state financial assistance.

2. BASISOFACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are.presented using the
budgetarv basis of accountip wiS Ae exceptiol of programs recorded in the food service fi*d, *hi"h are presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note I to the school District's basic financial
statem€Nrts. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
I"do4 Regulations Part200, UnformAdministrative Requirements, Cost Principles, *d,erd7 n"qoirementsfor iederat
Awwds, and State of New Jersey Circular l5-08-oMB; Single Audit Policyfor n"apuntt i/i"arra Grants, State Grants
and Stae Aid. Therefote, some amounts presented in this ichedule may iifer aom u-o*ts presented in, or used in the
preparation o{, the basic financial statements. The school district has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under therUniform Guidance

Federal State Total

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
,Debt Service Fund
Food Service Fund

69,569
1204,937

703,348

$ 13,784,421
1,553,993

138,533
7tt,546

L37
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K-5
Lower Township School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201g
(Continued)

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state financial
reports.

5. OTIIER

6. MAJORPROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of Findings and euestionedCosts.

7. ADJUSTMENTS

^Amounts reported in the column entitled "Adjusfinents" represent the following:

Federal

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Disfibution Program represent current year value received and current
year disfiibutions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF penlion contibutions r"p..r*tt the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the Sc-hoo-l District for the year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF Social Security Contributions rrir"rrnt, 1tr"amountlellb*t9 bJ the Stete for the School District's share of social security contributiois for TpAF members for the
year ended June 30, 2018.

Cancelation of
Accounts Receivable

Total

$34

$ 34
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Financid 9tatementg

Tlpe of auditofs report issued:

Intemal contol over financial reporting:

1) Material weaknesses identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

l) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Sigrrifi cant defi ciencies identified?

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200 section .516 of the Unifonn
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards ( Uniform Guidancef

Identifi cation of major programs:

CFDA Num,ber(s)

84.027

LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FII\DINGS AI\D QUJSTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 30,2OI8

Section f -Summary of Auditor's Results

Unmodified

no

I nonereported

ho

yes x no

- 

Ys X nonerePorted

Unmodified

x

x

yes

yes

yes

noXyes

FAIN Nur4ber(s)

HO27At70t00

Name of Fgderal Prq.grqn of Cluster

IDEAPaTtB-Basic

IDEAPaTtB-Preschool84.173 Hl73At70rt

Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwwen t)?e A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X

l_ 39

yes no
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I,OWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOI, DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT]NE 30,2018

Section I -" Summary of Auditorrs Results (Cont,d)

Stat6 Awards Secti.on

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Intemal Con8ol over major programs:

l) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Sigrificant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weakness?

Tlpe of audito/s report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that aro required to be reported
in accordance withNJOMB Circular Letter 15-08 as applicable?

Identification of major programs:

Statg Grant/?roiect Number(s)

18.495-034-5120-078

l8-495-034-5120-068

l8-495-034-5r20-089

18495-034-5120:084

r8-495-034-5r20-085

18495-034-5120-097

l8-495-034-5r20-098

18-495-034-5120,t01

l8-495-034-5120-0t4

l8-495-034-5094-003

$750,000

X yes _,no

yes

yes X none reported

-

Unmodified

no

noX

xyes

Name of State Prosram

State Aid Public Cluster:
Equalization Aid

School Choice Aid

Education Aid

Aid

AdjustlentAid

Per GrowthAid

PARCC Readiness

Professional Aid

Transportation Aid

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contibutions

L40
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDTNGS AI\ID QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Section 2 - Schedule of Financial Stateirent Findings

This section identifies the sigrrificant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to
the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Gwernment Auditing Siandards and with
auilit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finanee, Deparbnent of Education, Staie of New Jersey.

No findings identified.

t4L



K-7
LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant defibiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations ParI200, Unform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey Circular I5-08-OMB.

FDDERAL AWARDS:

No findings and/or questioned costs identified.

STATE AWARDS:

No findings and/or questioned costs identified.
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LOWER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SI]MMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AI\D QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the financial statements and federal and state

lygd: tlat ary required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Gwernment Auditing Standards,Title2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unforn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirementsfor Federat Awards (JniformGuidance) and New Jersey Circular 1S-OS-ON{B.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no prior year audit findings.

FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no prior year audit findings.

STATE AWARDS

There were no prior year audit findings.
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